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Dear Sir/Madam,

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 we are submitting herewith the Annual Report of the Company for
the Financial year ended 31st March, 2025 together with Notice convening of 52nd
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company scheduled to be held on Monday, 15t
day of September, 2025 at 11:00 A.M at the Registered Office of the Company at
Kanganwal Road, V.P.O Jugiana, G.T Road, Ludhiana-141120 (Punjab).

In compliance with relevant circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, the Notice convening the 52 AGM and the
Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2024-2025 is being sent through
electronic mode to all the Members of the Company whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent i.e. Skyline
Financials Services Private Limited/ Depository Participant(s).

The Annual Report for the financial year 2024-2025 including the Notice convening the
52nd AGM is also available on the website of the Company at
https://gargfurnacelimited.com/annual-report/

You are requested to take the above mentioned information on your records.

Thanking You,

Yours Faithfully,
For Garg Furnace Limited

DEVINDER
GARG

Devinder Garg
Managing Director
DIN: 01665456
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385
Regd. Office: Kanganwal Road, V.P.O. Jugiana, G.T. Road, Ludhiana-141120, Punjab
Phone: 0161-2512285 Email: gargfurnace@yahoo.com,

Web: www.gargfurnacelimited.com

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 52" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Garg Furnace
Limited will be held on Monday, the 15th day of September, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. at the Registered
office at Kanganwal Road V.P.O. Jugiana G T. Road, Ludhiana- 141120 to transact the following
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements for the financial year ended on
31.03.2025 and the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Director in place of Sh. Toshak Garg (DIN: 03503511) who retires by rotation in
terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

3. Re-Appointment of M/s. Ashwani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana (Firm
Registration No. 000497N), as a Statutory Auditor and to fix their remuneration and in this
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141 and 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), M/s. Ashwani & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Ludhiana (Firm Registration No. 000497N), who being eligible for re-appointment
as Statutory Auditors in terms of Section 141 of the Act and applicable rules, be and are hereby
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of 52"
Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of 57" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Company to be held in the year 2030, to conduct the audit of the accounts of the Company for
the financial year ending 2025-26 to 2029-30, respectively, at a remuneration mentioned in the
explanatory statement annexed herewith.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as
“Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any Committee constituted or to be constituted
by the Board or any person authorized by the Board in this regard), be and is hereby severally
authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this
resolution and to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
and desirable to giving effect to this resolution.”
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. Re-appointment of Cost Auditors of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought
fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time, the
Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of INR 20,000.00 (Rupees Twenty Thousand Only)
plus out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s. Anju Pardesi, Cost Accountants (Firm's Registration
No. 003448) who have been appointed by the Board of Directors as the Cost Auditors of the
Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company, for the Financial Year
ending 31* March, 2026.”

5. Appointment of M/s PDM & Associates, Mrs. Pooja Damir Miglani, Practicing Company
Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought
fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 179 and 204 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules made thereunder, and
Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
as amended from time to time, and based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors, the approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for the
appointment of M/s PDM & Associates, Mrs. Pooja Damir Miglani, Practicing Company
Secretaries (Membership No. A25988, COP No. 25003), as Secretarial Auditors of the Company
for a term of five consecutive years, commencing from Financial Year 2025-26 till Financial Year
2029-30 at such remuneration and on such terms and conditions as may be determined by the
Board of Directors (including its committees thereof), and to avail any other services,
certificates, or reports as may be permissible under applicable laws.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, (including its committees
thereof), be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, including filing the requisite forms or submission of
documents with any authority or accepting any modifications to the clauses as required by such
authorities, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected
therewith, or incidental thereto.”

6. To approve Material Related Party Transactions of the Company and in this regard to consider
and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
from time to time, (“Listing Regulations”), the other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) read with Rules made thereunder, other applicable laws / statutory provisions, if
any, (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment (s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for
the time being in force), the Company’s policy on Related Party transaction(s), and subject to
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such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) as may be necessary from time to time and basis the
approval and recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company, the approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
Company to enter/continue to enter into Material Related Party Transaction(s)/Contract(s)/
Arrangement(s)/ Agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions
taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) with entities falling within the definition
of ‘Related Party’ under Regulation 2(1)(zb)of the Listing Regulations and any other applicable
regulations if any to transactions the details of which are more particularly set out in the
explanatory statement of this Notice, provided however that the aggregate amount/value of all
such arrangements/ transactions contracts that to be entered into by the Company with the
Related Party and remaining outstanding at any one point in time shall not exceed the limits
mentioned below, during the financial year 2024-2025, on such terms and conditions as may be
considered appropriate by the Board of Directors of the Company, provided that the said
contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm’s length basis and in
the ordinary course of business of the Company.

Name of Related Party and
Nature of Relationship

Type of Transaction(s)

Value of Transactions (Rs. in crore)
and Tenure of Transactions

Vaneera Industries Limited

(Formerly Known as Vaneera

Industries Private Limited)
(Promoter Group Company)

Purchase of Goods
Sales of Goods
Rent Received
Lease of Machinery

Aggregate value of transactions
for the financial year 2024-2025
should not exceed Rs. 150.00
crore.

Devinder Garg
(Managing Director and
Promoter)

Remuneration
Unsecured Loan
Received

Aggregate value of transactions
for the financial year 2024-2025
should not exceed Rs. 1.00 crore.

Vaneera Garg
(Wholetime Director and
Promoter)

Remuneration
Unsecured Loan
Received

Aggregate value of transactions
for the financial year 2024-2025
should not exceed Rs. 1.00 crore.

Toshak Garg
(Managing Director and
Promoter)

Remuneration
Unsecured Loan
Received

Aggregate value of transactions
for the financial year 2024-2025
should not exceed Rs. 1.00 crore.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as
‘Board’ which term shall be deemed to include the Audit Committee of the Company and any
duly constituted/to be constituted Committee of Directors thereof to exercise its powers
including powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized, to do and
perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary, including finalizing the
terms and conditions, methods and modes in respect thereof and finalizing and executing
necessary documents, including contract(s), scheme(s), agreement(s) and such other documents,
file applications and make representations in respect thereof and seek approval from relevant
authorities, including Governmental/regulatory authorities, as applicable, in this regard and deal
with any matters, take necessary steps as the Board may, in its absolute discretion deem
necessary, desirable or expedient, to give effect to this resolution and to settle any question that
may arise in this regard and incidental thereto, without being required to seek any further
consent or approval of the Members or otherwise to the end and intent that the Members shall
be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
resolution and all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all
respects.”

7. Appointment of Mrs. Mehak Jain (DIN: 11152162) as an Independent Director of the Company.
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as Special Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152, 160 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, read with Schedule IV of the Act and Regulations
16(1)(b), 25, 17 and other applicable regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations’) (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and based on the recommendations of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company (“the
Board”) given at their meetings held on 14™ August, 2025, Mrs. Mehak Jain (DIN: 11152162),
who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 14™ August, 2025
pursuant to Section 161 of the Act and Articles of Association of the Company and who meets
the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act along with the Rules
framed thereunder and Regulation 16 (1) (b) and other applicable provision of the Listing
Regulations and who has submitted a declaration to that effect and in respect of whom the
Company has received a Notice in writing from a member under Section 160(1) of the Act
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a first
term of 5 years effective from 14" August, 2025 to 13% August, 2030 (both days inclusive);

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, (including its committees
thereof), be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, including filing the requisite forms or submission of
documents with any authority or accepting any modifications to the clauses as required by such
authorities, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected
therewith, or incidental thereto.”

By Order of the Board of
Directors
For Garg Furnace Limited

Place: Ludhiana Devinder Garg
Date: 14.08.2025 Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 01665456
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NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “meeting”) is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a
member of the company. The instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at
the registered office of the company not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement
of the meeting.

2. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a
proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4. In case of Joint-holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote during the AGM.

5. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, in
respect of the Special Business under Item No. 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 is annexed hereto. The
recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) in terms of Regulation
17(11) of the Listing Regulations is also provided in the said Statement. Necessary information of
the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM as required under Regulation
36(3) of the Listing Regulations and the Revised Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2)
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSl) is also appended to the Notice.

The Statement read together with the Annexures hereto and these notes form an integral part
of this Notice.

6. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form
can submit their PAN to the Company/ Skyline Financial services Limited.

7. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Book of the company will remain closed from
Tuesday, 09th September, 2025 and ends on Monday, 15th September, 2025 (both days
inclusive).

8. DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH E-MAIL

Pursuant to the MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circulars, the Notice alongwith the Annual Report of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, will be sent only through e-mail, to
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those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company or the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent (the “RTA”), i.e., M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited or the
Depository Participant(s). The Notice and the Annual Report for the financial year ended March
31, 2025 shall be available on the websites of the Company viz., www.gargfurnacelimited.com
and of the Stock Exchanges where Equity Shares of the Company are listed i.e. i.e., BSE Limited
at www.bseindia.com.

Members who have received the Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip in
electronic mode are requested to print the Attendance Slip and submit a duly filled in
Attendance Slip at the Gate of Venue of the AGM.

Any queries regarding the Annual Accounts or otherwise must be sent to Registered Office of the
Company at least 10 days before the date of meeting.

9. Mrs. Pooja Damir Miglani, PDM & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner (including
the ballot forms received from members who do not have access to the e-voting process). The
scrutinizer shall upon the conclusion of General Meeting, unblock the votes in presence of at
least two witnesses not in employment of the Company and make a report of the votes cast in
favour or against, if any, forthwith to the chairman of the Company.

10. The Results of the resolutions passed at the AGM of the Company will be declared within 2
working days from the conclusion of AGM. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s
report shall be placed on Company’s website of CDSL and will be communicated to the stock
exchanges.

11. Nomination Facility

SEBI vide its Circular dated 16™ March, 2023 has mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details (i.e.
Postal Address with Pin Code, email address, mobile number, bank account details) and
nomination details by holders of securities. On or after 1°* October, 2023, in case any of the
above cited documents/ details are not available in the Folio(s), RTA shall be constrained to
freeze such Folio(s). Relevant details and forms prescribed by SEBI in this regard are available on
the website of the Company at www.gargfurnacelimited.com

Members holding shares under a single name in physical mode are advised to make nomination
in respect of their shareholding in the Company. The Nomination Form can be downloaded from
the Company’s website, i.e., www.gargfurnacelimited.com from “Investor Relations” section.
Members holding shares in demat mode should file their nomination with their respective
Depository Participant(s).

12. Pursuant to Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, the securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in the dematerialized mode. In compliance with SEBI vide its circular
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD _ RTAMB/ P/CIR/202Z/8 dated 25" January 2022, the following requests
received by the Company/ Company RTA in physical form will be processed and the shares will
be issued in dematerialisation form only:-

i. Issue of duplicate share certificate
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ii. Claim from unclaimed suspense account

iii. Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate

iv. Endorsement

v. Sub-division/splitting of securities certificate/ Consolidation of securities certificates/folios
vi. Transmission

vii. Transposition

For this purpose, the securities holder/claimant shall submit a duly filled up Form ISR-4 which is
hosted on the website of the Company as well as on the website of Skyline Financial Services Pvt
Ltd, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA). Members, who are holding shares in
physical/electronic form and their e-mail addresses are not registered with the Company/their
respective Depository Participants, are requested to register their e-mail addresses at the
earliest by filling Form ISR-1 and sending the scanned copy of the Form mentioning their name,
complete address, folio number, number of shares held with the Company along with self-
attested scanned copy of the PAN Card and self-attested scanned copy of any one of the
following documents viz, Aadhaar Card, Driving License, Election Card, Passport, utility bill or any
other Govt. document in support of the address proof of the Member as registered with the
Company for receiving the Annual Report 2024-25 along with AGM Notice by email to
gargfurnace@yahoo.com. Members holding shares in demat form can update their email
address with their Depository Participants and send scan copy of client master to
gargfurnace@yahoo.com.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') vide its circular no SEBVHO/MIRSD/MIRSD _
RTAMB/ P/CIR/2021/655 dated 3™ November, 2021, circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD _
RTAMBIP/CIR/2021/687 dated 14™ December, 2021, circular no. SEBVHO/ MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-
1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated 16" March, 2023 (now rescinded by Master Circular SEBI/
HO/MIRSD/P00-1/PiCIR/2023/70 dated 17" May, 2023) read with SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/
CIR/2023/1 81 dated 17" November, 2023 has made it mandatory for the shareholders holding
securities in physical form to furnish PAN, KYC (complete address with pin-code, bank detail with
MICR-CODE & IFS CODE, Email-ID, Mobile Number) and Nomination details to the Registrar and
Transfer Agent ('RTA') of the Company. Registrar will not process any service requests or
complaints received from the member until unless above KYC and nomination will not be
completed by shareholder.

SEBI has made it mandatory for all Companies to use the bank account details furnished by the
Depositories and the bank account details maintained by the RTA for payment of dividend to
Members only electronically by rescinded the SEBI circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD
_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated 3" November, 2021 and SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-
1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated 16" March, 2023 by issuance of Master Circular for Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents dated 17t May, 2023 and SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2023/ 181
dated 17" November, 2023, all dividend payments after 31* March, 2024, will be processed only
electronically.

In compliance with SEBI Circular, please note that no dividend will be processed in Physical mode
and the Company will process the dividend in electronic mode only as per the details provided
by you within the stipulated time. Further to note that if the aforesaid details are not received
and the dividend remain unpaid/unclaimed upto 7 years, dividend will be transferred to IEPF
after 7 years as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") vide its Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-
1/P/CIR/ 2023/131 dated 31° July. 2023 and SEBVHO/OIAE/ OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated
4™ August, 2023 and Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/145 (updated
as on 11" August, 2023), has introduced a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal ("ODR
Portal") to facilitate online conciliation and online arbitration for resolution of disputes arising in
the Indian Securities Market. Investors may also refer link https://scores.gov.in/ to access the
ODR Portal as well as to the modalities of the ODR portal and operational guidelines and
instructions including timelines for registration/review/ resolution of complaints/disputes filed
through the portal, manner of proceedings to be conducted by the ODR institutions, role and
responsibilities of market infrastructure intermediaries, code of conduct for conciliators and
arbitrators etc. as provided in the SEBI Circulars referred above and available on the website of
the Company. An intimation to the shareholders through email had been sent by Company RTA
during the year under consideration whose email are registered with them in regard to the
Online Dispute Resolution Mechanism (ODR system) as maintained by the Company.

13. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change in
their address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining
their demat accounts.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change in their address or
Bank mandates immediately to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Skyline
Financial Services Pvt. Ltd, D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial, Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020.
Tel: 011- 64732681-88 Web: www.skylinerta.com

14. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to immediately notify any change in
their address along with self attested copy of address proof i.e. Adhaar Card/Electricity
Bill/Telephone Bill/Driving License/Passport/Bank Passbook particulars to the Company or its
RTA and in case their shares are held in dematerialized mode, this information should be
notified/submitted directly to their respective Dps.

15. Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars registered against
their respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend, if
any. The Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt.
Ltd. cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in electronic
form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only
to their Depository Participants by the Members.

16. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, read in conjunction with Rule 19(1) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Members are provided the opportunity
to make nominations concerning the shares held by them. Members who have not yet
registered their nominations are hereby urged to do so by submitting Form No. SH 13. This form
can be obtained from the Company's website https://gargfurnacelimited.com/

17. Members who hold shares individually in single name and in physical form are advised to initiate
the nomination process regarding their shareholding in the Company. To accomplish this, they
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must submit the duly completed Form No. SH 13 with the Company's Registrar and Transfer
Agent (RTA) for shares in physical form, and with their respective depository for shares in
electronic form.

18. In the event that any Member requires cancellation or modification of their existing nomination
pertaining to their Shareholding in the Company, they may download Form ISR-3 or Form SH-14
from the Company's website https://gargfurnacelimited.com/. After obtaining the appropriate
form, they must duly complete it and submit Form ISR-3 with the Company's Registrar and
Transfer Agent (RTA) for shares in physical form, or Form SH-14 with their respective depository
for shares in electronic form.

19. Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s
Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd., immediately of:

a) Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account
type, account number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished
earlier.

20. Voting through Electronic Means: Pursuant to the Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule
20 of the Companies (Management And Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to
time and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Company is pleased to provide the facility to the Members a facility to exercise their
right to vote at the 52" Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means

21. The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

a) The voting period begins on Friday, 12th September, 2025 (9.00AM IST) and ends on Sunday,
14th September, 2025 (5.00PM IST) During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, og™
September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by
CDSL for voting thereafter.

b) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date through e-voting would not
be entitled to vote at the meeting value.

CDSL e-Voting System — For e-voting.
THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING:

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.
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Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical
mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

c) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility
to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed
that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a
negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user
IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants.
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the
ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and

convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholdersholding shares in demat mode.

d) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of Login methods
Members
Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through
members their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to
holding shares reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for
in Demat mode users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com
with CDSL /myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon
and select New System Myeasi.
2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as
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per the information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/

EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.
com/Evoting/Evotinglogin The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-voting Service Providers.

Individual
members
holding shares
in demat mode
with NSDL

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for
IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/Ideas

DirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
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Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
member through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
(holding shares | Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
in demat mode) | option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
login  through | NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
their Depository | can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
Participants provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual members holding shares in demat mode for any technical issues related to
login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
members holding | sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-
shares in Demat 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

mode with CDSL

Individual
members holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
shares in Demat sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990

mode with NSDL and 1800 22 44 30

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical
mode andnon-individual shareholders in demat mode.

i Login method for e-voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual
holding in Demat form.

1) The members should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
2) Click on “Shareholders/Members” module.

3) Now Enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

12
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b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
¢. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For members holding shares in both demat and physical form other than
individual members

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the the first two
letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN
field.

e In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable
number of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the
name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with
Sequence number 1 then enter RAO0O000001 in the PAN field

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as

Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Details e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company
OR Date of please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details
Birth (DOB) field as mentioned in instruction (5).

iii. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

iii. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new
password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for
voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

iv.  For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

V. Click on the EVSN for the relevant Garg Furnace Limited on which you choose to vote.
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vi.  On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

vii. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

viii. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote,
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

iXx. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

X. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option
on the Voting page.

xi. If Demat account holder has forgotten the login password then enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system.

xii. Members can also cast their vote using CDSLs mobile app “m-Voting available” for android,

Apple and Windows based mobiles. The m- Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play
Store, App Store and the Windows Phone store respectively. Please follow the instructions as
prompted by the mobile app while remote e-voting on your mobile.

xiii. Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians- Remote e-voting:

e Non-Individual members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as “Corporates” module.

e A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

o After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
to vote on.

e The list of accounts Linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (“POA”) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for
the scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email
address viz; gargfurnace@yahoo.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded
same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.
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1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual
meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing,
25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call at toll free
no.1800 22 55 33.

22. Note to Shareholders: SEBI Circular — Special Window for Re-lodgement of Transfer Requests
of Physical Shares

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2025/85 dated July 02, 2025, shareholders are hereby informed
that SEBI has introduced a Special Window for re-lodgement of transfer requests for physical
shares.

In accordance with the circular:

A special window is being provided to shareholders who had submitted transfer requests for
physical shares between April 1, 2019 and March 31, 2021, which were returned/rejected due
to regulatory restrictions on physical transfers.

Such shareholders may now re-lodge their transfer requests with the concerned listed
company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) between July 7, 2025 and January 6,

2026.
For and on behalf of the Board
For Garg Furnace Limited
Devinder Garg
Place: Ludhiana Chairman and Managing Director
Date: 14.08.2025 DIN: 01665456
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business
mentioned in the accompanying Notice.

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, (“Listing Regulations”) as amended
from time to time and Secretarial Standards 2 on General Meeting issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, the following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating
to the Special business mentioned under Respective 3 to 6 of the accompanying Notice dated 14"
August, 2025:-

Item No. 3

As the members are aware, M/s. Ashwani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana
(Registration No. 000497N) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for five
consecutive years (i.e. FY 2020-2021 to FY 2024-2025) from the conclusion of 47th Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”) till the conclusion of 52th AGM of the Company. The Board has recommended to
appoint M/s. Ashwani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana (Registration No. 000497N) as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for further second term for a period of five consecutive years.

In view of the above, approval of members is being sought at this AGM for re-appointment of M/s
Ashwani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana (Registration No. 000497N) as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a further period of five years i.e. from the conclusion of 52™ AGM till
the conclusion of 57" AGM of the Company (i.e. a total term of five consecutive years), to conduct
the audit of accounts of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2026 to March 31,
2030.

M/s. Ashwani & Associates, Chartered Accountants have given their consent to be re-sappointed as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company and have confirmed that the said appointment, if made will
be within the limit specified under Section 144 of the Act. They have also confirmed that they are
not disqualified to be appointed as Statutory Auditors in terms of provisions of Section 141 of the
Act and the provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. They have also provided
confirmation that they have subjected themselves to the peer review process of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and hold a valid certificate issued by the ‘Peer Review Board’
of the ICAL.

Information pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the following details are
mentioned below for the information of Members:

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
1. Proposed audit fees | The fees proposed to be paid to M/s. Ashwani & Asscoates
payable to auditors towards the statutory audit and limited review for the

financial year 2025-26 shall be Rs. 4,50,000/- plus applicable
tax and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred
with authority to Board to make changes as it may deem fit
for the balance term.

2. Terms of Appointment M/s. Ashwani & Associates will continue as Statutory
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Auditors for five more years, i.e., financial years ending from
March 31, 2026 to March 31, 2030.

3. Material Change in fees | None
payable

4. Basis of recommendation | The Audit Committee and Board of Directors at its meeting
and auditor credentials held on August 14, 2025 had recommended the re-

appointment of M/s. Ashwani & Associates, as Statutory
Auditors of the Company based on a review of their profile,
experience and specialization in audit of corporate sector.
The said re-appointment shall be pursuant to applicable
provisions of the Companies Act 2013, SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Profile

M/s. Ashwani & Associates, with 70 years in the industry,
M/s. Ashwani & associates is the pioneer of audit, tax and
business consulting for a generation of businesses. Their
exclusive clientele ranges from emerging businesses to
billion-dollar multinational corporations. Their team of
specialised industry experts would guide your business and
personal finances through the complexities of the ever-
changing landscapes of the world economy.

None of the Directors, Manager and / or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution
as set out at Item No. 3 of the notice with regard to their appointment.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the
accompanying Notice for approval by the Members.

Item No.: 4

The Company is required under Section 148 of the Act to have the audit of its cost records
conducted by a Cost Accountant in Practice. The Board of Directors of the Company has on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment and remuneration M/s Anju
Pardesi, Cost Accountants (Firm's Registration No.: 003448) of the Company to conduct audit of cost
records of the Company for products covered under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014 for the Financial Year ending 31 March, 2026, at a remuneration of Rs. 20000.00 plus
reimbursement of out-of- pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors has to be ratified by the members of the
Company.

Accordingly, the consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at
Iltem No. 4 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the
Financial Year ending 31 March, 2026.
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None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are
concerned or interested in the Resolution mentioned at Item No. 4 of the Notice.

Item No. 5

Appointment of M/s PDM & Associates, Mrs. Pooja Damir Miglani, Practicing Company Secretaries
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and Section 204 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, each as amended from time to time, the Company is required to undertake Secretarial
Audit by a Secretarial Auditor who shall be a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary and shall
annex a Secretarial Audit Report in such form as specified therein, with its annual report.
Accordingly, the Board at its meeting held on 30" May, 2025, based on recommendation of the Audit
Committee, after evaluating and considering various factors such as experience, Independence and
competent audit team, had approved the appointment of M/s PDM & Associates, Mrs. Pooja Damir
Miglani, Practicing Company Secretaries, a peer reviewed firm (Membership No. A25988, COP No.
25003), as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years commencing
from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029-30, subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company.

M/s PDM & Associates, a leading firm of practicing Company Secretaries (hereinafter referred to as
PDMA) She had qualified Company Secretary in July 2010. She has a rich experience of more than
14.5 years in handling Corporate Level ROC Compliance. She was working as a Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer of Malwa Cotton Spinning Mills Limited (a Listed Company) for 5.5 years and
as a Company Secretary of Hero Steels Limited for Six Years. She became an Insolvency Professional
in January 2022 and has done several Sec-07, Sec 09 and personal Guarantee cases till date.

The Company has received consent to act as Secretarial Auditors of the Company from PDMA and
confirmation to the effect that the firm is not disqualified and is eligible to be appointed as
Secretarial Auditors in terms of the provisions of the Act, Listing Regulations and other applicable
law. Further, PDMA has also confirmed that its aforesaid appointment (if approved) would be within
the limits specified by Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The services to be rendered by
PDMA as Secretarial Auditors is within the purview of the said provisions read with SEBI circular no.
SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024.

PDMA was serving the Company as Secretarial Auditors since 3 year and its past association with the
Company as such was not considered as a term of appointment of Secretarial Auditor as per
Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations.

As per Regulation 36(5) of SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements, Regulations, 2025,

Fees payable along with terms of appointment and material change in Fees

The proposed remuneration to be paid to PDMA for secretarial audit services for the financial year
ending March 31, 2026, is Rs. 40,000/- (Rupees Thirty Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and out-
of-pocket expenses and there is no material change from the outgoing Auditor.

Besides the secretarial audit services, the Company may also obtain certifications from PDMA under
various statutory regulations and certifications required by banks, statutory authorities, audit related
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services and other permissible non-secretarial audit services as required from time to time, for which
they will be remunerated separately on mutually agreed terms, as approved by the Board of
Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee. PDMA shall be paid such remuneration for the
subsequent year(s) of its term, as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and
PDMA.

M/s PDM & Associates, Mrs. Pooja Damir Miglani, Practicing Company Secretaries, a peer reviewed
firm (Membership No. A25988, COP No. 25003), as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of
five consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029-30, subject to approval of the
Shareholders of the Company.

Basis of recommendation and credentials

The Board of Directors, in consultation with the Audit Committee, may alter and vary the terms and
conditions of appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be
mutually agreed with PDMA. Based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of
Directors have approved and recommended the aforesaid proposal for approval of members taking
into account the eligibility of the firm’s qualification, experience, independent assessment &
expertise of the partners in providing secretarial audit related services, competency of the staff and
Company’s previous experience based on the evaluation of the quality of audit work done by them in
the past.

Brief Profile

M/s PDM & Associates, a leading firm of practicing Company Secretaries (hereinafter referred to as
PDMA) She had qualified Company Secretary in July 2010. She has a rich experience of more than
14.5 years in handling Corporate Level ROC Compliance. She was working as a Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer of Malwa Cotton Spinning Mills Limited (a Listed Company) for 5.5 years and
as a Company Secretary of Hero Steels Limited for Six Years. She became an Insolvency Professional
in January 2022 and has done several Sec-07, Sec 09 and personal Guarantee cases till date.

In view of the above, the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Iltem No. 5 of this
Notice for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives
are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing the proposed Resolution.

Item No. 6

Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
(‘Listing Regulations’), all Related Party Transactions will require prior approval of Audit Committee,
all Material Related Party Transaction (‘RPT’) with an aggregate value exceeding Rs. 1,000 crore or
10% of annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of
the Company, whichever is lower, shall require approval of shareholders by means of an ordinary
resolution. The said limits are applicable, even if the transactions are in the ordinary course of
business of the concerned company and at an arm’s length basis. The amended Regulation 2(zb)
definition of related party of the Listing Regulations also covers, any person or entity forming a part
of the promoter or promoter group of the listed entity; or(b) any person or any entity, holding equity
shares:(i) of twenty per cent or more; in the listed entity either directly or on a beneficial interest
basis as provided under section 89 of the Companies Act, 2013, at any time, during the immediate
preceding financial year shall be deemed to be a related party. The amended Regulation 2(1)(zc) of
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the Listing Regulations has also enhanced the definition of related party transaction which now
includes a transaction involving a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a listed
entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand and a related party of the listed entity or any of its
subsidiaries on the other hand, regardless of whether a price is charged or not.

The annual consolidated turnover of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 is INR 26.16 Crores.
Accordingly, any transaction(s) by the Company with its related party exceeding INR 2.62 Crores
(10% of the Company’s annual consolidated turnover) shall be considered as material transaction
and hence, the approval of the Members will be required for the same.

The Management has provided the Audit Committee with the relevant details, as required under
law, of the proposed RPTs including material terms. The Audit Committee, after reviewing all
necessary information, has granted approval for entering into the above-mentioned RPTs with
Related Parties. The Committee haO fs noted that the said transactions will be at an arm’s length
basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company. Accordingly, basis the approval of the
Audit Committee, the Board of Directors recommends the resolution contained in Item No. 5 of the
accompanying Notice to the shareholders for approval.

Information pursuant SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/1055 dated November 11, 2024

Sr. | Description Details

No.

1. Details of Summary of information provided by the management to the Audit Committee

a. Name of the | Vaneera Industries | Devinder Garg Vaneera Garg Toshak Garg
related party | Limited (Formerly | (Managing Director | (Wholetime (Managing
and its | Known as Vaneera | and Promoter) Director and | Director and
relationship with | Industries Private Promoter) Promoter)
the listed entity | Limited)
orits subsidiary, | (Promoter Group

Company)

b. Nature of its | Financial Financial Financial Financial
concern or
interest
(financial or
otherwise);

c. Name of the | Sh. Daksh Garg | Managing Director | Wholetime Managing
director or key | and Smt. Nivedita | and Promoter of | Director and | Director and
managerial Garg is son and | the Company Promoter of the | promoter of
personnel who is | daughter of Sh. Company the Company
related, if any | Devinder Garg
and nature of
relationship

d. Type, material | The transaction | The transaction | The transaction | The
terms, and | involves Purchase | involves involves transaction
particulars of | of Goods, Sales of | Remuneration and | Remuneration involves
contracts or | Goods, Rent | unsecured loan | and unsecured | Remuneration
arrangement received and lease | received are done | loan received are | and
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of machinery given

at prevailing market

done at prevailing

unsecured

to related party is | rates at arm’s | market rates at | loan received
charged at | length basis and in | arm’s length basis | are done at
prevailing market | the Ordinary Course | and in the | prevailing
rates at arm’s | of Business. Ordinary Course | market rates
length basis and in of Business. at arm’s
the Ordinary length  basis
Course of and in the
Business. Ordinary
Course of
Business.

e. Tenure of the | Approval is for | Approval is for | Approval is for | Approval s
proposed Financial year | Financial year 2025- | Financial year | for Financial
transaction 2025-2026 2026 2025-2026 year 2025-
(particular 2026
tenure shall be
specified

f. Value of | Aggregate value of | Aggregate value of | Aggregate value Aggregate
proposed transactions transactions should | of transactions value of
Transaction (Rs. | should not exceed | not exceed Rs. 1.00 | should not transactions
In Crore) Rs. 150.00 crore. crore. exceed Rs. 1.00 should not

crore. exceed Rs.
1.00 crore.

g. Percentage  of | 174% (approx.) of | 26161.49% 26161.49% 26161.49%
annual the annual | (approx.) of the | (approx.) of the | (approx.) of
consolidated consolidated annual consolidated | annual the annual

turnover of the
Company as on
March 31, 2025,
that is
represented by
proposed RPT

turnover of the

Company.

turnover of the

Company.

consolidated
turnover of the
Company.

consolidated
turnover  of
the Company.

h. A statement that
the valuation or
other external
report, if any,
relied upon by
the listed entity
in relation to the

proposed
transaction will
be made
available
through the

registered email
address of the
shareholders

The Company conducts transactions with related parties in its ordinary course
of business at prices which are at arm’s length. The Company uses

methodologies as

per

Organisation for

Economic Co-operation

and

Development guidelines for establishing arm’s length pricing. The pricing for
such transactions are established generally considering market price for
comparable transactions with unrelated parties where available or on cost plus
reasonable margin basis.

2. Justification for
why the
proposed

The Related party
transactions are at
arm’s length basis

The Related party
transactions are at
arm’s length basis

The Related party
transactions are
at arm’s length

The

party
transactions

Related
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transaction is in
the interest of
the listed entity;

for maximizing the
yield on available

surplus funds
which is in the
interest of the
Company.

for maximizing the
yield on available
surplus funds which
is in the interest of
the Company.

basis for
maximizing  the
yield on available
surplus funds
which is in the
interest of the
Company.

are at arm’s
length  basis
for
maximizing
the yield on
available
surplus funds
whichisin the
interest of the
Company.

Details of transac

tion relating to any loans, inter-corporate

made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary:

deposits, advances

or investments

details of the | Internal Accruals Not Applicable Not Applicable Not
source of funds Applicable
in connection

with the

proposed

transaction

where any | Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not
financial Applicable
indebtedness s

incurred to

make or give

loans, inter-

corporate

deposits,

advances or

investments

- nature of

indebtedness;

- cost of funds;

and —tenure

applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not
terms, including Applicable
covenants,

tenure, interest

rate and

repayment

schedule,

whether secured

or unsecured; if

secured, the

nature of

security

the purpose for | The Related party | Not Applicable Not Applicable Not
which the funds | transactions are for Applicable

will be utilized
by the ultimate
beneficiary  of

working capital needs
and general corporate
purposes.

such funds

22




GARG FURNACE | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 www.gargfurnacelimited.com

pursuant to the

RPT
4, A statement that | Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not
the valuation or Applicable

other  external
report, if any,
relied upon by
the listed entity
in relation to the

proposed
transaction  will
be made
available
through

registered email
address of the
shareholder

5. Any other | All important information forms part of the statement setting out material
information that | facts, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 forming part of
may be this Notice.
relevant

The ceiling on the amounts of the transactions specified as above would mean the transactions
entered into and the remaining outstanding at any point of time.

The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the related parties
as defined thereunder (whether such related party(ies) is a party to the aforesaid transactions or
not), shall not vote to approve resolutions under Item No. 6.

None of the Directors and/ or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their respective
relatives is in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed ordinary
resolution as set out at ltem No. 6 of the notice.

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of Ordinary Resolution set out at ltem No. 6 of the
accompanying Notice for approval by the Members.

Item No. 7

The Members are requested to note that the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) provide
that there should be optimum combination of Executive and Non-executive Director including
Independent Director on the Board of a listed Company. Therefore, in order to meet the above
requirement and to fill the vacancy arisen from the resign of Mrs. Purti Katyal Independent Director
of the Company, it was required to appoint an Independent Director at the earliest but not later
than three months from the date of such casual vacancy.

In view of the above and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC), the Board of Director (“the Board”) in its meeting held on 14.08.2025 had
appointed Mrs. Mehak Jain (DIN: 11152162) as Additional Director with effect from 14.08.2025 and
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subject to the approval of Shareholders of the Company as an Independent Director of the Company
for a tenure of 5 years commencing from 14™ August, 2025 to 13" August, 2030.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 161 of the Act and Articles of the Association of the
Company, Mrs. Mehak Jain holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’)

Mrs. Mehak Jain, aged about 36 years graduate in B.COM and Worked as a Company Secretary for
More than 2 years.

Mrs. Mehak Jain is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in accordance with Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013, and has not been debarred from holding the office of director by
virtue of any SEBI order or any other such authority and has given her consent to act as a Director of
the Company. The Company has also received declaration from Mrs. Mehak Jain that she meets the
criteria of independence as prescribed both under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
under Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time. As required under Regulation 25 (8) of
Listing Regulations, Mrs. Mehak Jain has also confirmed that she is unaware of any circumstances or
situations which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact her ability to
discharge her duties.

In compliance with Section 150 of the Act read with the corresponding Rules, Mrs. Mehak Jain has
been duly registered with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (lICA) and confirmed his
adherence to the requirements of Rule 6(4) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), within the prescribed timeline. As required under Section 160
of the Act, the Company received a notice in writing from a member proposing the candidature of
Mrs. Mehak Jain for the position of Independent Director of the Company.

While considering the above appointment, the NRC thoroughly evaluated various aspects, including
Independence, Integrity, leadership capabilities, administrative knowledge, and managerial
experience, as key skills required for the role. Based on their assessment, the NRC and the Board of
Directors are of the view that Mrs. Mehak Jain possesses the requisite skills and capabilities that
would be of immense benefit to the Company and hence it is desirable to appoint her as an
Independent Director.

In the opinion of the NRC and the Board of Directors, Mrs. Mehak Jain fulfills the conditions as set
out in Section 149(6) and Schedule IV of the Act, as well as the Listing Regulations, for being eligible
for appointment. The Board has established the veracity of the abovementioned declarations or
documents submitted by Mrs. Mehak Jain. In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Mehak Jain fulfils the
conditions specified in the Act and the rules made there under and Listing Regulations and she is
independent of the Management.

A copy of the draft Letter of Appointment for Independent Directors is available for inspection
through electronic mode. Members desiring to inspect the same may send their request to
gargfurnace@yahoo.com from their registered email address, mentioning their names and folio
numbers/ demat account numbers, and including a self-attested copy of PAN card or Adhaar Card or
Voter ID Card. Mrs. Mehak Jain will be remunerated through sitting fees for attending the
Company's Board Meetings or any other purpose whatsoever, as may be determined by the Board
from time to time and within the limits specified under the provisions of the Act, and Listing
Regulations.
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Based on the aforementioned considerations and in accordance with the Listing Regulations, the
consent of the members is sought by way of a special resolution for the appointment of Mrs. Mehak
Jain as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, as set forth in the accompanying
Notice.

A brief profile of Mrs. Mehak Jain, nature of her expertise in specific functional areas and names of
Companies in which he holds directorships or Chairmanships of Board committees, shareholding,
and relationships between directors inter se, as stipulated under the Act, Listing Regulations, and
Secretarial Standards, is provided in Annexure-A to this Notice.

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the NRC, consider that the appointment of
Mrs. Mehak Jain as an Independent Director is in the interest of the Company and, therefore,
recommends the Special Resolution as set out at item no. 7 of the Notice for approval of the
Members.

Except Mrs. Mehak Jain an appointee, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution as
set out in the Notice.

For and on behalf of the Board
For Garg Furnace Limited

Devinder Garg
Place: Ludhiana Chairman and Managing Director
Date: 14.08.2025 DIN: 01665456
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ANNEXURE-A

Information pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings regarding

Director seeking appointment/re-appointment as set out in this notice furnished below:

Particulars Retire by rotation Appointment

Name Mr. Toshak Garg Mrs. Mehak Jain

DIN 03503511 11152162

Designation Managing Director Non-Executive Independent Director
Date of birth 17/11/1990 27/12/1988

Age 23 years 36 years

Date of appointment [14/08/2023 14/08/2025

Qualification Bachelor's degree B.Com and CS

Expertise in specific
functional areas

Mr. Toshak Garg, Director of the
company, has been a pivotal part of
the organisation since 15 years. He is
responsible for the Production,
Marketing and Finance departments in
the firm. Being part of the new
generation, his aim is bring in new &
fresh ideas to enhance growth.

Mrs. Mehak Jain, aged about 36 years
graduate in B.COM and Worked as a
Company Secretary for More than 2
years.

Directorship in other

. Nil Nil
Companies
Chairman/Member
of committees of Nil Nil

other Companies

Terms of
appointment

He has been appointed as Managing
Director of the Company and he is
liable to retire by rotation

She has been appointed as Non-
Executive Independent Director of the
Company for a term of 5 years w.e.f.
14.08.2025 till 13.08.2030.

Remuneration for

Rs. 13,00,000/- (Rupees Thirteen

Sitting fees: NIL

the F.Y. 2024-2025 |Lakhs Only) per annum
Remuneration Rs. 13,00,000/- (Rupees Thirteen
sought to be paid:  |Lakhs Only) per annum

Disclosure of
relationship between
directors inter-se:

Sh. Toshak Garg is son of Sh. Devinder
Garg and Smt. Vaneera Garg

Nil

Shareholding:

2,16,951 Equity Shares

Nil

No. of Board
Meetings attended
during the year:

9 out of 9

Not Applicable

List of Other
Directorships on
other Board along
with listed entities
from which the
person has resigned

Nil

Nil
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in the past three
years:

List of Committee
Membership/
Chairmanship on
other Board along
with listed entities
from which the
person has resigned
in the past three
years:

Nil

Nil

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 14.08.2025
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Devinder Garg
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors present the 52" Annual Report together with the audited accounts of the company
for the financial year ended 31* March 2025.

FINANCIAL PERFORMACE:

The financial performance of the company for the financial year under review is as under:-

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Operating Income 26331.51 25935.33
Profit before tax & Exceptional items 763.59 555.84
Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00
Profit before tax 763.59 555.84
Provision for tax -Current Tax
-tax related to earlier years 0.00 0.00
-Deferred Tax Asset 0.00 0.00
Less : Mat Credit Entitlement 0.00 0.00
Profit after Tax 763.59 555.84
Prior year Tax adjustments / Depreciation
to Reverse as per Schedule — I 0.00 0.00
Re-measurement of define benefit liability 5.15 2.99
APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to General Reserve 0.00 0.00
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 768.74 558.83

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind-AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS:
Detailed information on the operations of the different business lines of the Company and details on
the state of affairs of the Company are covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report
which form an integral part of this Annual Report.

DIVIDEND:
During the year under review, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 to conserve the resources.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE:

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve.
The General Reserve of the Company stood at Rs. 1899.24 Lakhs as at 31.03.2025.
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TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:
Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed dividend, the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act,
2013 do not apply.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any Public Deposit within the meaning

of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. There is no

outstanding/unclaimed deposit from the public. However, the information as required under Rule 8

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given hereunder:-

(i) Deposits accepted during the year: Nil

(ii) Deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year: Nil

(iii) Default in repayment of deposits and deposits which are not in compliance with the
Requirements of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013: not applicable.

SHARE CAPITAL:

As on March 31, 2025, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 10,00,00,000/- divided
into 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each. Further as on March 31, 2025, the
issued, paid up and subscribed Share capital of the Company stood at Rs. 5,00,87,000/- divided into
50,08,700/- Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each.

The Company has issued 28,00,000 convertible warrants out of which 6,00,000 warrants were
converted into Equity Shares on 28.03.2024. During the year under review, The Company has
allotted 4,00,000 Equity Shares pursuant to conversion of warrants. The Company has not issued
shares or convertible securities or shares with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock
options or sweat equity. As on March 31, 2025, Sh. Devinder Garg, Managing Director, Sh. Toshak
Garg, Managing Director and Smt. Vaneera Garg, Wholetime Director of the Company hold
Convertible Warrants into Equity Shares of the Company. Further there was no public issue, rights
issue, bonus issue etc. during the year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT BY THE COMPANY:

The Company, during the year, has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties under the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Information regarding loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are detailed in the Financial Statements at Note No. 4.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

DIRECTORS:
As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors consists of 2 (Two) Managing Directors, 1 (One)
Wholtime Director and 3 (Three) Non-Executive Independent Directors.

WOMAN DIRECTOR:
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In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has Mrs.
Vaneera Garg, Ms. Shruti Gupta, Ms. Purti Katyal and Ms. Amandeep Kaur as Woman Directors on
the Board as on March 31, 2024.

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

a. Ms. Shruti Gupta(DIN: 10310259) was appointed as an Additional Independent Director of
the Company by the Board on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee in
their meeting held on 23rd July, 2024, with effect from 23rd July, 2024, in accordance with
provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Ms. Shruti Gupta is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the
Act. As per the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and based on the
performance evaluation, the Board had recommended the appointment of Ms. Shruti Gupta (DIN:
10310259) as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of five years w.e.f. 23rd July,
2024 and Shareholders had approved her appointed in 51* Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Company had also received a declaration from Ms. Shruti Gupta declaring that she meets the
criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Shruti Gupta fulfills the conditions required to be fulfilled for being
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulation,
2015.

b. Mrs. Jyoti Batra (DIN: 10009491) has resigned as Independent Director w.e.f. 23 July 2024 on the
Board of the Company.

c. Mrs. Mehak Jain was appointed as an Additional Independent Director of the Company by the
Board on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee in their meeting held on
14.08.2025, with effect from 14.08.2025, in accordance with provisions of section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Mrs. Mehak Jain is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the
Act. As per the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and based on the
performance evaluation, the Board had recommended the appointment of Mrs. Mehak Jain as an
Independent Director of the Company for a period of five years w.e.f. 14.08.2025 and proposal
before Shareholders for approval of her appointment in ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company has been placed.

The Company had also received a declaration from Mrs. Mehak Jain declaring that she meets the
criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Mehak Jain fulfills the conditions required to be fulfilled for being
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulation,
2015.

d. Mrs. Purti Katyal has resigned as Independent Director w.e.f. 14.08.2025 on the Board of the
Company.
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RETIREMENT BY ROTATION:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Sh. Toshak Garg
(DIN: 03503511) Managing Director of the Company, retires from the Board by rotation this year and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Information as required to be disclosed a per
regulation as applicable of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 in case of re- appointment of the director is
provided in the Notice of the ensuing annual general meeting.

In compliance with Regulation 36(3) of Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards information
about the Director proposed to be appointed/re-appointed is attached along with the Notice calling
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

KEY MANAGERIA7L PERSONNEL:

The following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP’s) of the Company as on March 31,
2025 in terms of provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under:-
Mr. Devinder Garg — Chairman and Managing Director

Mrs. Vaneera Garg - Wholetime Director

Mr. Toshak Garg — Managing Director

Mr. Gurmeet Singh Battu — Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. Supreena Tagra — Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

ik wn e

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

In terms of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received necessary
declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company. All Independent Directors of the
Company have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under
Section 149(6) of the Act, Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations along with the declaration
that they have registered themselves with the Independent Director’s Database maintained by the
IICA as provided in sub-rule (3) rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors, fulfill the conditions
of independence specified in Section 149(6) of the Act Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations.
The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s Code
of Business Conduct & Ethics.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND COMMITTEES:

During the year under review, Nine meetings of the board were convened and held on 20.04.2024,
30.05.2024, 23.07.2024, 07.09.2024, 01.10.2024, 14.11.2024, 06.01.2025, 12.02.2025 and
14.02.2025. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The details in respect to the Attendance are provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming
part of this Report.

Information on the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Risk Management Committee and meetings of those
Committees held during the year is given in the Corporate Governance Report.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company’s Independent Directors held their meeting on 22.04.2024 without the attendance of
Non Independent Directors and members of the management. All Independents Directors were
present at the meeting and, they:

31



GARG FURNACE | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 www.gargfurnacelimited.com

1 Reviewed the performance of non-Independent directors and the Board as a whole;

Assessed the quality and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company’s
Management and the Board which is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform their duties.

BOARD EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR)
regulations, 2015, the Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of Independent
Directors and the Board. The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance,
performance of its Committees as well as directors individually. The Board of Directors formally
assess their own performance based on parameters which, inter alia, include performance of the
Board on deciding long term strategies, rating the composition and mix of Board members,
discharging of governance and fiduciary duties, handling critical and dissenting suggestions, etc. The
Board was satisfied with the evaluation process and approved the evaluation results thereof.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company is committed to follow the best Corporate Governance practices, including the
requirements under the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Board is responsible to ensure the same,
from time to time. The Company has duly complied with the Corporate Governance requirements.
Further a separate section on Corporate Governance in compliance with the provisions of Regulation
34 of the Listing Regulations read with Schedule V of the said regulations along with a Certificate
from a Practicing Company Secretary confirming that the Company is and has been compliant with
the conditions stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 forms part of the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013:-

a) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended on 31% March, 2024, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

b) That the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March, 2024 and of the profit of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

c) that the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

d) that annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

e) that the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return of the Company, pursuant to sub-section 3 (a) of Section 134 and the provisions
of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 for
the financial year 2024-2025 in the Form MGT-7 has been uploaded on Company's website at
https://gargfurnacelimited.com/

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENT MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:
All transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis.

Further, the members of the Company in their 51°° Annual General Meeting held on 30.09.2024, had
approved the material-related party transaction by Garg Furnace Limited with its related parties for
the financial year 2024-2025. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC-2 is annexed as Annexure-1.

The details of all the Related Party Transactions form part of Note No. 38 to the standalone financial
statements attached to this Annual Report.

Your Company has framed a Policy on Related Party Transactions for purpose of identification and
monitoring of such transactions in line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations and the said policy is available www.gargfurnacelimited.com

We would like to inform you that during the year, no material related party transactions made by
the Company with Promoters, directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons
which may have potential conflict with interest of the Company at large. Pursuant to Listing
Regulations, the resolution for seeking approval of the shareholders on material related party
transactions is being placed at the AGM.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company is having adequate internal control systems and procedures which commensurate
with the size of the Company. The Company is having Internal Audit Department which ensures that
the internal control systems are properly followed by all concerned departments of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts that would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

CORPORTE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
The Company is covered under the purview of the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereon.

CSR Policy

The Board of Directors of the Company has put in place a CSR policy in accordance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR Policy of the Company can be
downloaded at website of the Company at https://gargfurnacelimited.com/

Further Annual Report on the CSR activities of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-2025 is
attached herewith as Annexure - 2
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under
and Regulations 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Board of Directors of the Company has been appointed M/s PDM & Associates, (membership
number: 25003), Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company
for the financial year 2024-2025.

M/s PDM & Associates, (membership number: 25003), Practicing Company Secretaries have carried
out the Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. The Secretarial Audit Report in
Form No. MR-3 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 under the Act, read with Rules made
thereunder, is annexed herewith as Annexure 3 and forms an integral part of this report.

There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Secretarial
Auditor in his Report for the year under review and therefore, does not call for any further
comments.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The information required pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 (12) read with rule 5 (1), 5(2) and
5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
annexed hereto as Annexure- 4 and forms part of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee pursuant to Section 177(8) read with Rule 6 of
the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (LODR), Regulations,
2015.

As on 31.03.2025, the Audit Committee consists Ms. Amandeep Kaur (Non-Executive Independent
Director) as Chairman, Ms. Purti Katyal (Non-Executive - Independent Director) as Member and Ms.
Shruti Gupta (Non-Executive Independent Director) as Member. The details in respect to the
Attendance, Powers, Roles, and Terms of Reference etc. are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report forming part of this Report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND POLICY:

As required u/s 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, the Company
has constituted nomination & remuneration committee. As on 31.03.2025, the committee consists
of Ms. Amandeep Kaur (Non-Executive Independent Director) as Chairman, Ms. Purti Katyal (Non-
Executive - Independent Director) as Member and Ms. Shruti Gupta (Non-Executive Independent
Director) as Member. Further, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the board has already framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key
Management Personnels & Senior Management and their remuneration. The details in respect to
the Attendance, Powers, Roles, and Terms of Reference etc. are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report forming part of this Report. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is
available on the Company’s website and the web link for the same is www.gargfurnacelimited.com

As mandated by proviso to Section 178(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, salient features of
Nomination and Remuneration Policy is annexed as Annexure-5 hereto and forms part of this report.
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STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

As required u/s 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, the Company
has constituted stakeholder relationship committee. As on 31.03.2025, the committee consists of
Ms. Amandeep Kaur (Non-Executive Independent Director) as Chairman, Ms. Purti Katyal (Non-
Executive - Independent Director) as Member and Ms. Shruti Gupta (Non-Executive Independent
Director) as Member. The details in respect to the Attendance, Powers, Roles, and Terms of
Reference etc. are provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

As on 31.03.2025, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company consists of Ms.
Amandeep Kaur (Non-Executive Independent Director) as Chairman, Ms. Purti Katyal (Non-Executive
- Independent Director) as Member and Ms. Shruti Gupta (Non-Executive Independent Director) as
Member. The Composition and terms of Reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
are in line with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and are provided
in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

Pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, Board of Directors
had, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed M/s Anju Pardesi, (Firm
Registration Number: 003448) Cost Accountants, to audit the cost accounts of the Company for the
financial year 2025-26 at a remuneration of 20000.00 plus service tax, out-of pocket and travel and
living expenses, subject to ratification by the shareholders at ensuing annual general meeting.
Accordingly, a resolution seeking members’ ratification for the remuneration payable to cost auditor
is included in the Notice convening the annual general meeting.

The Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of Cost
records under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

REPORTING OF FRAUD:
There are no frauds on or by your Company, which are required to be reported by the Statutory
Auditors of your Company.

DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARASSMENTOF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBIITON AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every
individual working in our company’s premises through various interventions and practices. The
Company always endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination
and harassment including sexual harassment.

The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. The
policy aims at prevention of harassment of employees as well as contractors and lays down the
guidelines for identification, reporting and prevention of sexual harassment. There is an Internal
Complaints Committee which is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment
and follows the guidelines provided in the policy.

During the year ended 31st March, 2025 the Committee did not receive any complaint pertaining to
sexual harassment and there is no complaint pending as on the date of beginning of this Financial
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year and as on the date of the closure of this Financial year. Consequently, there are NIL cases
disposed off during the year and NIL cases pending for more than ninety days.

COMPLIANCE OF THE PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961:
During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions relating to the
Maternity Benefit Act 1961.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

Management Discussion and analysis Report as required under Regulation 34 and Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms an integral part of this
Report.

LISTING AGREEMENT:

To streamline the provisions of the Listing Agreement and its better enforceability the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI), on September, 2, 2015 issued SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures  Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The said Regulation became effective from 1%
December, 2015. In compliance of the said Regulations, the company has entered into Listing
Agreement with the BSE Ltd. on 23" February, 2016.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND HOLDING COMPANIES:
Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company and Holding
Company as on 31* March, 2025.

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITOR’S REPORT:

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 M/s. Ashwani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firms Registration No. 000497N),
was appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company by the Shareholders at their Annual General
Meeting held on September 30, 2020, to hold office for a period of five years, from the conclusion of
the 47th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 52nd Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in the year 2025.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have submitted the Auditor’s Report on the Financial
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025. The Auditor’s Report is
self-explanatory and requires no comments. Further, there were no adverse remarks or qualification
in the Report that calls for Board’s explanation. During the year under review, there were no frauds
reported by Auditors under Section 143(12) of Companies Act, 2013.

Further, We wish to inform you that M/s. Ashwani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firms
Registration No. 000497N) were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the 52"
Annual General Meeting (AGM) to hold office up to the conclusion of the 57" AGM for a further
period of five consecutive years to conduct the audit of the company for financial years commencing
from 31.03.2026 to 31.03.2030. They are holding a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

INTERNAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the
Company has been appointed Mrs. Nazma Khatoon to conduct the internal audit of the Company for
the 3 quarters of the financial year 2024-2025.
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Mrs. Nazma Khatoon performs the duties of internal auditors of the Company for the first 3 quarters
of the financial year 2024-2025 and their report is reviewed by the audit committee.

However, Mrs. Nazma Khatoon has tendered her resignation from the post of Internal Auditor of the
Company w.e.f. 21.02.2025. In her place, The Board has appointed Mr. Sahil Barniyal as an Internal
Auditor of the company w.e.f. 21.02.2025 for the 4™ quarter for the financial year 2024-2025 and for
the financial year 2025-2026.

Mr. Sahil Barniyal performs the duties of internal auditors of the Company for the 4th quarter of the
financial year 2024-2025 and their report is reviewed by the audit committee.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
During the year under review, your Company has duly complied with applicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards on meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2).

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

The information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earning and Outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as Annexure -6 and forms part of this
report.

MATERIAL CHANGES OR COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:
There were no material changes or commitments, affecting the financial position of the company
which have occurred between the end of Financial Year 31°* March, 2024 and the date of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has in place a risk management policy including identification therein of elements of
risk, if any, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the company and also
the comprehensive risk assessment and minimization procedures, which are reviewed by the Board
periodically as per the Risk Management Policy of the Company. The Board provides oversight and
reviews the Risk Management Policy periodically.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 and applicable provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, the
Company has put in place an effective Vigil Mechanism/ Whistleblower Mechanism. The Vigil
mechanism is implemented not only as a safeguard to unethical practices. This mechanism is
intended to provide mechanism for reporting genuine concerns or grievance and ensure that
deviations from the Company’s Business Conduct Manual and Values are dealt with in a fair and
unbiased manner. The mechanism also ensures the protection of whistleblower against the
victimization for the disclosure made by him/her. Under the mechanism an Ethics committee has
been established for managing the vigil mechanism and the mechanism also provides for direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional circumstances. The Audit Committee
reviews and ensures the adequacy of the system laid down by the Company for the said purpose.
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No concern was reported in aforesaid connection during the financial year ended March 31, 2025.
The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the website of the Company and the web
link for the same is https://gargfurnacelimited.com/details-of-establishment/

POLICIES:

Your Company has framed the Policies (i) the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information; (ii) the Code of Conduct as required under SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, (iii) Policy on inquiry in case of leak of unpublished price
sensitive information (UPSI) (iv) Policy for Preservation of Documents (v) Policy for determination of
Materiality of the Disclosure of Events & Information (vi) Archival Policy and the same is available on
the website of Company at https://gargfurnacelimited.com/

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES:

The Company, at the time of appointing a Director, issues a formal letter of appointment which,
inter alia, explains the role, functions, duties and responsibilities expected from him/her as a
Director of the Company. All the Independent Directors are provided with all the Policies/Guidelines
as framed by the Company under various statutes and SEBI Regulations, to familiarize them with
Company's procedures and practices. Further, to update them on a regular basis, the Company
provides copies of all the amendments in Corporate Laws, Corporate Governance Rules and SEBI
Regulations. The details of Company's Policy on Familiarization Programs for Independent Directors
are posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at https://gargfurnacelimited.com/

GREEN INITIATIVE:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance”
by allowing paperless compliances by the companies. Further, as per the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013, the Company may send financial statements and other documents by electronic mode to
its members. Your Company has decided to join the MCA in its environmental friendly initiative.
Accordingly, henceforth Company propose to send documents such as Notice of the General
Meetings, Annual Report and other communication to its shareholders via electronic mode to the
registered e-mail addresses of shareholders. To support this green initiative of the Government in
full measure, shareholders are requested to register/update their latest e-mail addresses with their
Depository Participant (D.P.) with whom they are having Demat A/c. We solicit your valuable co-
operation and support in our endeavor to contribute our bit to the environment.

LISTING OF SECURITIES, LISTING FEES AND ANNUAL CUSTODY FEES:

The Securities of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (Scrip Code: 530615), Phiroze Jeejeebhoy
Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400 001. The Company has paid the listing fee to the BSE Limited for
the financial year 2025-2026. The Company has also made the payment of Annual Custody fee to
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
for the financial year 2025-2026.

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT:

(a) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at
the beginning of the year: Nil

(b) number of shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of shares from suspense
account during the year: Nil

(c) number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account during the
year: Nil
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(d) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at
the end of the year: Nil

(e) that the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares
claims the shares: Not Applicable

HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

The Industrial Relations remained cordial throughout the year. A detailed section on Human
Resources/Industrial Relations is provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which
forms part of this Annual Report.

OTHER DISCLOSURES:
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as
there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:-

No application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code; hence the requirement to
disclose the details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of the
financial year is not applicable; and

The requirement to disclose the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the
time of one time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial
Institutions along with the reasons there of, is not applicable.

The Company has not defaulted in payment of interest and/ or repayment of loans to any of
the financial institutions and/ or banks during the year under review is not applicable.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
The Directors of the company wish to place on record their sincere thanks to the shareholders for
their continued support, co-operation and confidence in the management of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
For Garg Furnace Limited

Devinder Garg
Place: Ludhiana Chairman and Managing Director
Date: 14.08.2025 DIN: 01665456
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ANNEXURE-1 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis —
During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company had not entered into any contract/ arrangement/
transaction with its related parties which is not in ordinary course of business or at arm’s length.

Number of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

(a) Corporate Identity Number (CIN) or foreign company registration number (FCRN) or Limited
Liability Partnership number (LLPIN) or Foreign Limited Liability Partnership number (FLLPIN) or
Permanent Account Number (PAN)/Passport for individuals or any other registration number: Not
Applicable

(b) Name(s) of the related party: Not Applicable

(c) Nature of relationship: Not Applicable

(d) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

(e) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

(f) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including actual /expected
contractual amount: Not Applicable

(g) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable

(h) Date of approval by the Board: Not Applicable

(i) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

(j) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188: Not Applicable

(k) SRN of MGT-14: Not Applicable

Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis —

All the transactions entered into by the Company with its related parties, during the year under
review were in the “ordinary course of the business” and on “an arm’s length basis”, in accordance
with the Company’s Related Party Transactions Policy.

Number of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: 4 (Four

(a) Corporate Identity Number [U17120PB2011PLC0O350[AAQPG7293R| ACBPG7170L |AQRPG5512C
(CIN) or foreign company 17
registration number (FCRN) or
Limited  Liability  Partnership
number (LLPIN) or Foreign Limited
Liability =~ Partnership  number
(FLLPIN) or Permanent Account
Number  (PAN)/Passport  for
individuals or any other
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registration number:

any:

(b) Name(s) of the related party: Vaneera Industries Devinder Vaneera Toshak Garg
Limited (Formerly Garg Garg
Known as Vaneera
Industries Private
Limited)
(c) Nature of relationship: (Promoter Group| (Managing | (Wholetime | (Managing
Company) Director and| Director and| Director and
Promoter) Promoter) Promoter)
(d) Nature of Financial Financial Financial Financial
contracts/arrangements/transacti
ons:
(e) Duration of the Approval is for Approval is | Approvalis | Approvalis
contracts/arrangements/transacti | Financial year 2025- | for Financial | for Financial | for Financial
ons: 2026 year 2025- year 2025- year 2025-
2026 2026 2026
(f) Salient terms of the contracts The transaction The The The
or arrangements or transactions involves Purchase of | transaction | transaction | transaction
including actual /expected Goods, Sales of involves involves involves
contractual amount: Goods, Rent received | Remunerati | Remunerati | Remunerati
and lease of on and on and on and
machinery given to unsecured unsecured unsecured
related party is loan loan loan
charged at prevailing | received are | received are | received are
market rates at arm’s | done at done at done at
length basis and in prevailing prevailing prevailing
the Ordinary Course market rates| market rates| market rates
of Business. atarm’s atarm’s atarm’s
length basis | length basis | length basis
and in the and in the and in the
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary
Course of Course of Course of
Business. Business. Business.
(g) Date of approval by the Board: | 14.08.2025 14.08.2025 | 14.08.2025 | 14.08.2025
(h) Amount paid as advances, if NIL NIL NIL NIL

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 14.08.2025
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ANNEXURE — 2 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company’s CSR policy and programs are in accordance with Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013.
The CSR policy of the Company can be accessed on its website at https://gargfurnacelimited.com/

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
SL | Name of Director Designation / Nature of Number of Number of
No. Directorship meetings of CSR| meetings of CSR
Committee held Committee
during the year | attended during the
year
1. AMANDEEP KAUR Chairperson/ 1 1
Non-Executive - Independent
Director
2. SHRUTI GUPTA Member / 1 1
Non-Executive - Independent
Director
3. PURTI KATYAL Member / 1 1
Non-Executive Independent
Director
3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:
https://gargfurnacelimited.com/

4, Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135: Rs. 5.94 Cr.
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135:
Rs. 11.88 Lakhs
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. 11.88 Lakhs

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
Rs. 14.47 Lakhs
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(d)Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 14.47 Lakhs
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
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Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Amount Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified

Spent for to Unspent CSR Account as under Schedule VIl as per second proviso

the per sub-section (6) of to sub-section (5) of section 135

Financial section 135

Year (in Amount Date of Name Amount Date of

Rs.) transfer of the transfer
Fund

14.47 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Lakhs

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: 2.59 Lakhs

SL Particular Amount (in Rs.)
No.
1. 2, 3.
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the 11.88 Lakhs
company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 14.47 Lakhs
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)- 2.59 Lakhs
(i)]
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or NIL
programmes or activities of the previous
Financial Years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding 2.59 Lakhs
Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)]

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial
Years
1. 2. 3. 4, 5. 6. 7. 8.
SL Preceding | Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount Deficiency,
No. Financial transferred | Amount | Spentin transferred | remaining | if any
Year(s) to Unspent | in the to a Fund to be
CSR Unspent | Financial | as specified | spentin
Account CSR Year (in ") | under succeeding
under sub- | Account Schedule Financial
section (6) | under VIl as per Years (in 7)
of section sub- second
135 (in ) section proviso to
(6) of subsection
section (5) of
135 (in ) section
135, if any
NIL
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8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Yes v No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired : Not Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

SL Short Pin code Date of Amount Details of entity/ Authority/
No. | particulars of the creation | of CSR beneficiary of the registered owner
of the property amount
property or | or asset(s) spent CSR Name Registered
asset(s) Registration Address
[including Number, If
complete applicable
address and
location of
the
property]
Not applicable
9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit

as per sub-section (5) of Section 135: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board For and on behalf of the Board

For Garg Furnace Limited For Garg Furnace Limited

Amandeep Kaur Devinder Garg

Place: Ludhiana Chairman of Committee Chairman and Managing
Director

Date : 07.09.2024 DIN: 07728094 DIN: 01665456
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ANNEXURE-3 TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule
No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
To,

The Members,

Garg Furnace Limited

CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385

KANGANWAL ROAD VPO JUGIANA G T ROAD LUDHIANA PB 141120 IN

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Garg Furnace Limited hereinafter called the company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my Opinion thereon.

Based on my/our verification of the Garg Furnace Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
| hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31* March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Garg Furnace Limited (“The Company”) for the financial year ended on 31* March,
2025 according to the provisions of:

(i)The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there);

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
borrowings;
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.
(vi). Other Applicable Laws

. The Shops & Establishment Act, 1954

. The Factories Act

. Payment of Gratuity Act

. Minimum Wages Act, 1948

. Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

. The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

. Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act

. The Contract labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act 1970

. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

10.The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

O 00O NO U WWN

With reference to aforesaid specific Acts of the Company, i have relied on the Compliance
Certificates placed before the Board by the respective Department heads. With regard to compliance
system relating to direct tax, indirect tax and other tax laws, i have relied on the reports of Internal
as well as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for. Our report of compliance would be limited to
their reporting and subject to the observations and comments made by them in their report.

(vii) I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with laws relating to
labour & industrial laws Central, State & Local Tax Laws, Environmental laws as well as other laws
specifically applicable to the Company.
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India: Secretarial
Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India for Board Meetings and General
Meetings are applicable and have been duly complied.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s): During the period
under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Corporate Laws and
applicable Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

1. The Company has kept and maintained all Registers as per the provisions of the Corporate
Laws and the Rules made there under and all entries therein have been recorded.

2. The Company is not required to obtain any approval of the Central Government, National
Company Law Tribunal, Regional Director, Registrar and/or such authorities prescribed
under the provision of the Act during the said year.

3. There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the Company
and no fines or penalties or other punishment was imposed on the Company during the
financial year, for offences under the Corporate Laws.

4. Based on the Audit Procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us,
i report that no fraud on or by the Company was noticed or reported during the year.

5. Management has informed us that the website of the Company (gargfurnacelimited.com) is
being updated regularly as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with a proper balance of Executive,
Non-Executive Directors.

Composition of Board of Directors of the Company is adequate. Adequate notice is given to all
directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

| further report that based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized
representatives during the conduct of the Audit and also on review of quarterly compliance reports
by respective department heads/ Company Secretary taken on record by the Board of Directors of
the Company, in our opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
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commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has no specific events / actions having
a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above except:

1. To create, issue, offer and allot from time to time, in one or more tranches, 28,00,000 (Twenty
Eight Lakhs only) Convertible Warrants into Equity shares on preferential basis , at a price of X 195/-
(Rupees One Hundred Ninety Five Only) per share, aggregating upto X 54,60,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty
Four Crore Sixty Lakhs Only) (“Total Issue Size”), with a right to the warrant holders to apply for and
be allotted 1 (One) fully paid-up equity share of the Company of face value X 10.00/- (Rupees Ten
only), each at a premium of X 185/- per share for each Warrant

2. To issue and allot 4,00,000 (Four Lakh) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only)
each upon conversion of the warrants at an issue price of Rs. 195/- (Rupees One Hundred and
Ninety-Five only) each, including premium of Rs. 185/- each as on 01.10.2024.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an
integral part of this Report.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 14.08.2025 FOR PDM & ASSOCIATES

CS Pooja Damir Miglani

Company Secretaries Prop.

M.No. A25988

C.P No. 25003

UDIN: A025988G001018529

Peer Review No: Peer Review No: 6237/2024
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Annexure-A
To,

The Members,

Garg Furnace Limited

CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385

KANGANWAL ROADVPO JUGIANA G T ROAD LUDHIANA PB 141120 IN
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter stating that.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test
check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the
process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis of our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
procedure on test check basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 14.08.2025
FOR PDM & ASSOCIATES
CS Pooja Damir Miglani
Company Secretaries

Prop.

M.No. A25988

C.P No. 25003

UDIN: A025988G001018529

Peer Review No: Peer Review No: 6237/2024
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ANNEXURE — 4 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Disclosure in the Boards’ Report under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,

2014

1.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary or Manager during the Financial Year 2024-2025, ratio of the remuneration of
each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year
2024-2025.

Sr.

No.

Name &
Designation of
Director/KMP

Remuneration
for F.Y. 2024-
2025
(in Rs.)

% age increase/(decrease)
in remuneration in the F.Y.
2024-2025

Ratio of
Remuneration of
each director to

median
remuneration of

employees

Mr. Devinder Garg,
Chairman and
Managing Director

12,00,000

+5.15%

Ms. Vaneera Garg,
Wholetime Director

12,00,000

0%

Mr. Toshak Garg,
Managing Director

15,00,000

0%

Mr. Amandeep Kaur
Non-Executive
Independent
Director

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Mr. Gurmeet Singh
Battu
Chief
Officer

Financial

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Ms. Supreena Tagra
Company Secretary

156000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Ms. Purti Katyal
Non-Executive
Independent
Director

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Ms. Shruti Gupta
Non-Executive
Independent
Director#

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Ms. Jyoti Batra
Non-Executive
Independent
Director*

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

*Resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from 23 July, 2024
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* Appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from 23™ July, 2024

2. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs.
20328

3. In the financial year under review, there was 5.45 % decrease in the median remuneration of
employees.

4. There were 69 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2025.

5. Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year 2024-2025 is NIL.

6. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid to Directors, KMP’s and other employees

during the year is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Details of Top ten employees of the Company in terms of salary drawn as required under Rule 5(2)
and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
for the financial year 2024-2025.

Sr. | Name & Remunerati Nature of Qualificati Date of Age Last % age Whethe
No | Designatio | on Received | Employme | onand commenceme | (in employme | of r

n (in Rs.) nt Experience | ntof years | nt held equity relative
employment ) shares of any
held director
or
manage
r

1 Devinder 1200000 Managing B.A. 01.08.2015 60 - 654290 | Father
Garg Director of Mr.
Toshak
Garg
and
Husban
d

of Smt.
Vaneer
a Garg

2 Vaneera 1200000 Wholetime | B.A. 14.11.2015 58 - 156851 | Mother
Garg Director 0 of Mr.
Toshak
Garg
and
Wife of
Sr.
Devind
er
Garg

3 Toshak 1500000 Managing B.SC 14.08.2023 34 - 216951 | Son of
Garg Director Mr.
Devind
er Garg
and
Mrs.
Vaneer
a Garg

4 SANJAY 342000 PERMANENT | 10™ 01.07.2022 38 - - -

5 AMARIJEET | 528000 PERMANENT | 12™ 01.07.2023 33 - - -

51



GARG FURNACE | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

KUMAR

YADAV

6 | NIRANJAN [ 300000 PERMANENT | 10™ 01.07.2023 32 - - -
KUMAR

7 | PRITAM 186000 PERMANENT [ 10™ 01.06.2021 60 . . .
SINGH

8 | RAMESH 336000 PERMANENT | B.A. 01.08.2018 68 - - -
SINGH

9 | AsHOK 504000 PERMANENT | B.A. 01.12.2024 61 R R R
KUMAR

10 | RAJINDER | 234000 PERMANENT | 10™ 16.01.2022 64 - - -
PRASAD

Note:

i. During the Financial Year 2024-2025, there was no employee who, if employed throughout the
financial year, was in receipt of remuneration in the aggregate, not less than one crore and two
lakh rupees.

ii.  During the Financial Year 2024-2025, there was no employee who, if employed for a part of the
financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of the year, at a rate which, in the
aggregate, was not less than Eight Lakhs and Fifty Thousand Rupees per month.

During the Financial Year 2024-2025, there was no employee who, if employed throughout the

financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in the year which, in the aggregate,

or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was in excess of that drawn by the

managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his
spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the Company

For and on behalf of the Board

For Garg Furnace Limited

Devinder Garg

Place: Ludhiana Chairman and Managing Director

Date: 14.08.2025 DIN: 01665456
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ANNEXURE -5 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SALIENT FEATURES OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
[as Per Proviso To Section 178(4) Of The Companies Act, 2013]
APPLICABILITY
This Policy is applicable to:
a. Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent)
b. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
c. Senior Management Personnel
d. Other employees as may be decided by the Committee (“NRC”)

OBJECTIVE

The Policy provides criteria for:

1. Determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director;

2. Performance evaluation of Independent Directors, non- independent Directors, Chairman and the

Board;

3.Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel and other
employees, as may be decided by the Committee;

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL

PERSONNEL, SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNELAND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The following are the guiding factors:

— The scope of duties, the role and nature of responsibilities;

- The level of skill, knowledge, experience, local factors and expectations of individual;

- The Company’s performance, long term strategy and availability of resources;

— The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors, KMPs, Senior Management Personnel and other employees of the quality
required to run the Company successfully; and

- Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance

benchmark;

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE / INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

The following are the guiding factors:

- The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in force and as decided by
the Board from time to time.

- The Non-Executive/ Independent Director(s) may also receive remuneration / compensation /
commission etc as per criteria/limit thereof prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder

- Any increase in the maximum aggregate remuneration payable beyond permissible limit under the
Companies Act, 2013 shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders’, as may be applicable

EVALUATION

The evaluation will be done on following parameters:

1. Role which he/she is expected to play, internal Board Relationships to make decisions objectively
and collectively in the best interest of the Company to achieve organizational successes and
harmonizing the Board;

2. Attendance and contribution at Board and Committee meetings;
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3. Subject expertise, skills, behavior, experience, leadership qualities, understanding of business and
strategic direction to align company’s values and standards;

4. Ability to monitor the performance of management and satisfy himself with integrity of the
financial controls and systems in place by ensuring right level of contact with external stakeholders
5. Vision on Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility

6. Ability to create a performance culture that drives value creation and a high quality of discussions;
7. Effective decision making ability to respond positively and constructively to implement the same
to encourage more transparency;

For and on behalf of the Board
For Garg Furnace Limited

Devinder Garg
Place: Ludhiana Chairman and Managing Director
Date: 14.08.2025 DIN: 01665456
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ANNEXURE 6 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information pursuant to Section 134 (3)(m) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5
of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Director's Report for the
year ended 31st March, 2025

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The company has always been conscious of
the need to conserve energy and has always
attempted various measures for the same
wherever possible to achieve reduction in cost
of production. The company has taken various
measures on suggestions of experts in the
areas where energy reduction and fuel & oil
conservation is possible. The Company has
installed LED lamps in place of failed Tube
lights and CFL thereby reducingenergy
consumption in lighting during the year

b) Additional Investment and proposals if any, No

being implemented for reduction of energy
consumption

c) Impact of Measures taken at (a) above for
reduction of energy consumption and
consequent impact on the cost of production of
goods

a) Energy conservation measures

5% Saving in Energy consumption

d) Total energy consumption per unit of production as per form A of the annexure to
the rules in respect of industries specified in schedule thereto.

B. POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION

1. Electricity Current Year (2024-25) Previous Year (2023-24)
a) Purchased

Units(KWH) (in Units) 31235282 31259609
Total amount 212721867 222568479
Rate per unit 7.11 Rs. 7.11Rs.

b) Own Generation

i) Through Diesel Generator Units(KWH) | 3539 3541

Units per litre of diesel 3.90 3.90

Oil Cost/unit Rs. 22.81 Rs. 22.81
ii) Through steamTurbine Nil Nil

2. Coal

Quantity (Kgs)Total - -

Amount 0.00 0.00
Average Rate per Kg 0.00 0.00
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Efforts made in technology absorption are as under:

A. Research and Development(R&D) Nil
B. Technology absorption, adoption and innovation Nil
The manufacturing process is based on the indigenous know-how. We are adopting water

cooling system with heat exchanger and colloid-A-Tran equipment for improvementin

the working of the plant.

1. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUT GO

2024-2025 2023-2024
Total Foreign Exchange 0.00 0.00
Used (CIF Value of Imports) 0.00 0.00

For and on behalf of the Board

For Garg Furnace Limited

Devinder Garg
Place: Ludhiana Chairman and Managing Director
Date: 14.08.2025 DIN: 01665456
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Part-A

For FY 2024-25

Presented by Toshak Garg, Promoter cum Managing Director
Garg Furnace Limited

Leading the Future — Next-Gen Vision at Garg Furnace

Namaste Shareholders,

It gives me great pride to present the Management Discussion and Analysis for FY 2024-25 on behalf
of the Board of Garg Furnace Limited. As the next generation entrusted with this legacy, | see our
role not just as steel manufacturers—but as engineering partners, building stronger foundations for
India’s growth through quality, innovation, and responsibility.

This year marked a turning point. We have begun shifting from a commodity mindset to a value-first,

margin-driven model. The steel industry is evolving, and so are we. Every decision we made this year
was rooted in one core belief: Steel should perform, not just weigh.

@ Our Three Core Focus Areas in FY 2024-25
1.Chemistry-Led Product Innovation

Tailoring our steel compositions to meet specific strength, machinability, and consistency
requirements for industrial applications.

2.Entry into Value-Added Segments

Launching high-strength steel and self-drilling screws aimed at auto, engineering, and infrastructure
sectors.

3.Strategic Acquisition (Initiated)

We have taken a decisive step toward acquiring a 51% stake in Vaneera Industries Ltd., which brings
advanced alloy steel capabilities to our ecosystem.

Industry Context — The Steel Landscape in FY 2024-25

This year brought challenges across the global steel value chain. Benchmark per-ton steel prices
declined by 10-15%, driven by:

*Global oversupply

eSoftened demand from China
eVolatile input prices and freight
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Despite strong infrastructure-led demand in India, margin pressure persisted industry-wide. Many
players saw squeezed profitability and stagnating growth.

Our Response: Innovation, Efficiency, and Margin-Focus

Amid this backdrop, Garg Furnace chose not to compete on price—but on performance. We
redesigned our internal chemistry, processes, and customer base with one goal: Improve bottom-
line profitability regardless of commodity cycles.

& Chemistry-Led Value Creation

eIntroduced custom steel compositions—carbon, manganese, and chromium balanced for specific
performance needs

eSupplied to auto component suppliers, agricultural equipment makers, and industrial fastener
producers

eGained traction as a preferred vendor to Tier-2 OEM suppliers

*Enabled performance-linked pricing, reducing dependence on general market prices

This strategic transformation allowed us to:

eCarve out a niche based on quality
*Maintain 100% capacity utilization
eGrow margins and customer loyalty, even as prices fell

[l Financial Performance Snapshot

Despite falling steel prices, our innovation-led strategy helped us increase net profit by 60%, proving
that quality and value addition are the future of this business.
And we continued to remain 100% debt free.

Delivered What We Promised (from FY 2023-24)

Commitment (Last Year)

Status FY 2024-25

Improve margins through better quality & direct scrap sourcing

50% direct sourcing achieved, cost savings realized
Enter alloy steel market

Strategic step taken via proposed Vaneera stake
Diversify into auto/defense-grade steels

Value-added grades accepted by OEM-tier suppliers

& Strategic Expansion — Vaneera Industries Ltd.

This year, we initiated the acquisition process for a 51% stake in Vaneera Industries Ltd., Ludhiana—
a critical step in our journey toward becoming a premium alloy steel player.

Why Vaneera?
eAdvanced metallurgy: LRF, EMS, VD
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eTotal planned capacity: 204,000 MT

eServes auto, engineering, and defense sectors

eAllows mid-premium pricing at 5-10% discount to arc furnace steel
ePerfect for import substitution

The acquisition is expected to:

eExpand product range
eImprove realizations
*Provide entry into high-margin, performance-focused industries

Fasteners: Scaling a New Growth Vertical
We also commissioned a new self-drilling screw plant this year:

*400 MT/year capacity, expandable to 1200 MT
eTechnology sourced from Taiwan

eTargets India’s 5,000 Cr+ fastener market (20%+ imports)
eStrong policy tailwinds with anti-dumping protections

Our positioning here is clear: Local quality at global standards.
% Sustainability & Compliance

We continue our journey as a responsible manufacturer:
©100% recycled scrap used as raw material

£) Outlook for FY 2025-26

As we look ahead, we're optimistic and laser-focused. Key initiatives:

eComplete the Vaneera acquisition and begin alloy steel production
Scale up value-added steel and fastener volumes

eExpand customer base in auto and engineering segments

eSustain bottom-line-led growth, not just top-line expansion

Our internal goal is clear: Build a differentiated, defensible steel business that thrives in every cycle.

A\ 25 A Note of Gratitude

To all our shareholders, thank you for believing in us. This year we didn’t grow by chance—we grew
by choice, by discipline, and by design.

As | take forward the legacy of Garg Furnace, | assure you that the best is yet to come. We are not
just forging steel anymore—we are forging value, resilience, and leadership.

Warm regards,

Toshak Garg

Promoter cum Managing Director
Garg Furnace Limited

Ludhiana, Punjab
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Part-B

NAMASTE SHAREHOLDERS

It gives me great pride to present the Management Discussion and Analysis for FY 2024-25 on behalf
of the Board of Garg Furnace Limited. As the next generation entrusted with this legacy, | see our
role not just as steel manufacturers—but as engineering partners, building stronger foundations for
India’s growth through quality, innovation, and responsibility.

This year marked a turning point. We have begun shifting from a commodity mindset to a value-first,
margin-driven model. The steel industry is evolving, and so are we. Every decision we made this year
was rooted in one core belief: Steel should perform, not just weigh.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The global steel industry in FY 2024-25 witnessed significant headwinds. Benchmark steel prices
declined by 10-15% due to global oversupply, softened demand in China, and fluctuating input and
freight costs. While India’s infrastructure-driven demand remained robust, industry-wide
profitability was challenged.

In this evolving landscape, Garg Furnace Limited (GFL) made a strategic shift from volume-based
growth to a value-first, margin-led business model. Our focus remains on engineering high-
performance steel solutions, especially in specialized and fast-growing end-use segments such as
automotive, infrastructure, and precision manufacturing.

OUR COMPANY
We operate in the steel industry, primarily supplying to the agricultural, auto, nut and bolt and cycle
parts market in India.

Our Three Core Focus Areas in FY 2024-25

1. Chemistry-Led Product Innovation
Tailoring our steel compositions to meet specific strength, machinability, and consistency
requirements for industrial applications.

2. Entry into Value-Added Segments
Launching high-strength steel and self-drilling screws aimed at auto, engineering, and
infrastructure sectors.

3. Strategic Acquisition (Initiated)
We have taken a decisive step toward acquiring a 51% stake in Vaneera Industries Ltd.,
which brings advanced alloy steel capabilities to our ecosystem.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

OPPORTUNITIES

Chemistry-Led Value Creation

Introduced custom steel compositions—carbon, manganese, and chromium balanced for specific
performance needs
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Supplied to auto component suppliers, agricultural equipment makers, and industrial fastener
producers

Gained traction as a preferred vendor to Tier-2 OEM suppliers

Enabled performance-linked pricing, reducing dependence on general market prices

This strategic transformation allowed us to:

. Carve out a niche based on quality

. Maintain 100% capacity utilization

. Grow margins and customer loyalty, even as prices fell
THREATS

e Volatility in raw material (scrap) and energy costs

e  Pricing pressure from imports and commoditized steel players

e Delays in infrastructure spending or auto sector slowdowns

e Risk of integration and execution in new acquisitions and business verticals

FINANCIAL/OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Despite falling steel prices, our innovation-led strategy helped us increase net profit by 60%, proving
that quality and value addition are the future of this business and we continued to remain 100%
debt free. The detailed performance has already been discussed in the Directors’ Report under the
column ‘Financial Performance’.

INTERNAL CONTROL & SYSTEMS

The company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its
business. These internal policies ensure efficient use and Protection of assets and resources.
Compliance with policies, ensure reliability of financial and operational reports. The detailed point
has already been discussed in the Directors’ Report under the point Internal Financial Control.

RISK AND CONCERNS
This year brought challenges across the global steel value chain. Benchmark per-ton steel prices
declined by 10-15%, driven by:

. Global oversupply
o Softened demand from China
. Volatile input prices and freight

Despite strong infrastructure-led demand in India, margin pressure persisted industry-wide. Many
players saw squeezed profitability and stagnating growth.

STATUS FY 2024-25

Improve margins through better quality & direct scrap sourcing
50% direct sourcing achieved, cost savings realized

Enter alloy steel market

Strategic step taken via proposed Vaneera stake

Diversify into auto/defense-grade steels

Value-added grades accepted by OEM-tier suppliers
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Strategic Expansion — Vaneera Industries Ltd.

This year, we initiated the acquisition process for a 51% stake in Vaneera Industries Ltd., Ludhiana—
a critical step in our journey toward becoming a premium alloy steel player.

Why Vaneera?
. Advanced metallurgy: LRF, EMS, VD
. Total planned capacity: 204,000 MT
. Serves auto, engineering, and defense sectors

Allows mid-premium pricing at 5-10% discount to arc furnace steel
Perfect for import substitution

The acquisition is expected to:

. Expand product range
. Improve realizations
. Provide entry into high-margin, performance-focused industries

Fasteners: Scaling a New Growth Vertical

We also commissioned a new self-drilling screw plant this year:

. 400 MT/year capacity, expandable to 1200 MT

. Technology sourced from Taiwan

. Targets India’s X5,000 Cr+ fastener market (20%+ imports)
. Strong policy tailwinds with anti-dumping protections

Our positioning here is clear: Local quality at global standards.

Sustainability & Compliance

We continue our journey as a responsible manufacturer:

. 100% recycled scrap used as raw material
FUTURE OUTLOOK
As we look ahead, we're optimistic and laser-focused. Key initiatives:
. Complete the Vaneera acquisition and begin alloy steel production
. Scale up value-added steel and fastener volumes
. Expand customer base in auto and engineering segments
. Sustain bottom-line-led growth, not just top-line expansion

Our internal goal is clear: Build a differentiated, defensible steel business that thrives in every cycle.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT/INDUSTRIAL RELATION

During the year, the company has employed 69 persons. The Industrial Relations remain cordial
during the year. The company is continuing its efforts for improvement in the work culture wherein
employees can contribute to their fullest potential.The management acknowledges the contribution
of all employees in achieving better performance.
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:

As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, the
Company is required to provide details of significant changes (change of 25% or more as compared
to immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios. Accordingly, the Company has

identified the following ratios as key financial ratios:-

Ratio F.Y. 2024-2025 F.Y. 2023-2024 % Change
Current Ratio 3.91 3.98 -1.83%
Debt equity Ratio 0.02 0.03 -24.96%
Debt Services coverage Ratio 70.36% 42.10% 67.13%
Return on equity ratio (ROE) 13.76% 16.02% -14.11%
Inventory Turnover Ratio (in days) 21.99 22.34 -1.56%
Trade receivable turnover ratio (in 11.02 12.23 -9.93%
days)

Trade payable turnover ratio (in 22.51 29.02 -22.42%
days)

Net capital turnover ratio 6.34 8.13 -22.04%
Net profit ratio 2.92% 2.14% 36.39%
Return on capital employed (ROCE) 12.45% 11.42% 8.98%

EXPLANATION FOR CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:
Change in Debt services coverage ratio due to increase in earnings during the year. Change in net
profit ratio due to increase in net profit after tax during the year

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT:

The financial statements of the Company for financial year 2024-2025 have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable accounting principles in India and the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder. The Company has followed accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The significant accounting policies which are
consistently applied are set out in the notes to the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board
For Garg Furnace Limited

Devinder Garg
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 01665456

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 14.08.2025
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[In terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”)]

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year
ended March 31, 2025, in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 (“Listing
Regulations”)

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In Garg Furnace Limited (“The Company”), we strongly believe that establishing good corporate
governance practices in each and every function of the organization leads to increased
operational efficiencies and growth as well as enhancing investor confidence. Beyond mere
compliance we are committed towards taking initiative to enhance investor’s wealth in the long
run. This is reflected in the well balanced and independent structure of Company’s eminent and
well represented Board of Directors. The Company considers it absolutely essential to abide by
the laws and regulations in letter and spirit and is committed to the highest standards of
corporate governance and be considered as a good corporate citizen of the Country. Our
Corporate Governance framework ensures that we make timely disclosures and share accurate
information regarding our financials, performance and operations of the Company.

The Company as a good Corporate citizen complies with the conditions of corporate governance
pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“Listing Regulations”) as amended from time to time.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has a diversified Board, constituted in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013
(“The Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”) and in accordance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. The Board is
entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, directions and performance of
the Company. The Company is managed by the Board of Directors in co-ordination with the
Senior Management.

The Board of Directors constitute of 6 (Six) Directors. There are 2 (Two) Managing Director, 1
(One) Wholetime Director and remaining 3 (Three) are Non- Executive Independent Directors.

During the year under review, the Board met on 9 (Nine) occasions viz. 20.04.2024, 30.05.2024,
23.07.2024, 07.09.2024, 01.10.2024, 14.11.2024, 06.01.2025, 12.02.2025 and 14.02.2025. The
maximum gap between any two Board meetings was less than One hundred and twenty days.

Category of each director on the Board, their status, their attendance at the Board Meetings and
the last Annual General Meeting together with the details of number of other directorships and
Committee Membership(s)/ Chairmanship(s) of each Director and Name of other Listed Entities
in which concerned director is a director and the category of directorship as at 31.03.2025 are
as under:
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Name of the Category of| No. of Attendance No. of No. of Committees’| Name of | The
Director Director Board | at AGM Directorship1 in which Chairman | Other category of
Meetin | held on / Member Listed directorshi
gs 30.09.2024 entitiesin | p
Attend which
ed concerne
d director
isa
director
Chairman Members
Sh. Devinder Managing 90f9 Present 1 - - Nil Nil
Garg Director
Smt. Vaneera \Wholetime 90of9 Present 1 - - Nil Nil
Garg Director
Sh. Toshak Garg |Managing 90of9 Present 1 - - Nil Nil
Director
Ms. Amandeep |Non- 90f9 Present 2 2 2 Dolfin Non-
Kaur Executive Rubbers Executive
Independent Limited Independent
Director Director
Ms. Purti Katyal |Non- 60of 6 Present 2 2 2 Acme Non-
Executive Resources [Executive
Independent Limited Independent
Director Director
Ms. Jyoti Batra* |Non- 30f3 Not Not applicable [Not Not Not Not applicable
Executive applicable applicable [applicable [applicable
Independent
Director
Ms. Shruti Non- 60of 6 Present 2 2 2 1. Non-
Gupta# Executive Checkpoint |[Executive
Independent Trends Independent
Director Limited Director
2. Mercury
ITrade Links
Limited
3. Superfine
Knitters
Limited

*Ms. Jyoti Batra has resigned w.e.f. 23.07.2024 from the Board of the Company as a
Non- Executive Independent Director.

#Ms. Shruti Gupta was appointed as a Non- Executive Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f. 23.07.2024.

Notes:

1. The number of directorships excludes directorship of Garg Furnace Limited, Private
Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies incorporated under Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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2. Chairmanship/ Membership of Committee only includes Audit Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per Regulation 26 (1) (b) of the Listing
Regulations in Indian Public Limited Companies other than Garg Furnace Limited.

3. Number of memberships in Committees are inclusive of Chairmanship.
4. There are no inter-se relationships between the Board Members.
The number of Directorships and Committee positions held by the Directors are in conformity with

the limits laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, as on 315t March, 2025.
SHAREHOLDING DETAILS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AS ON 31.03.2025:

of the Director ation Equity Shares )areholding

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company on appointment of an Independent Director, issues a formal Letter of Appointment
setting out the terms of appointment, duties and responsibilities. The Company in terms of
Regulation 25(7) of Listing Regulations, has also put in place a system to familiarize the
Independent Directors of their roles, rights, responsibilities, nature of industry in which the
Company operates, business model of the Company and the ongoing events relating to the
Company. It aims to provide the Independent Directors an insight into the Company's functioning
and to help them to understand its business in depth, so as to enable them to contribute
significantly during the deliberations at the Board and Committee meetings. The details of
Familiarization Programme imparted to Independent Directors can also be accessed
from www.gargfurnacelimited.com

CHART SETTING OUT THE CORE SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Core skills/expertise/ | Those actually available with the | Name of the
competencies identified by the | board Directors who have
board of directors as required in such skills

the context of its business(es)
and sector(s) for it to function
effectively

As per the Board, all these Sh. Devinder Garg

1. Quick decision making
skills/expertise/competencies are Smt. Vaneera Garg

2. Understanding of

, ] available with the Board Sh. Toshak Garg
Company’s business Ms. Amandeep Kaur
Leadership Skills Ms. Purti Katyal

4. Understanding of relevant Ms. Shruti Gupta

laws, rules, regulations
and policies

5. Corporate Governance

6. Ability to understand
Financial Statements
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7. Industry knowledge and
experience

8. Finance and Taxation

CONFIRMATION FROM THE BOARD:

Pursuant to clause C(2) (i) of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of Listing Regulations, in the
opinion of the Board all the independent directors fulfill the conditions required for
independent directors as specified in the Listing Regulations and are independent of the
management.

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 149(6) of the Act along with rules framed thereunder. In
terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they have confirmed that they are not
aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could
impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the declarations received from
the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of
independence as mentioned under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and that they are independent of the management.

Further, the Independent Directors have included their names in the data bank of Independent
Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the
Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

DETAILED REASONS FOR THE RESIGNATION OF AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR WHO RESIGNS
BEFORE THE EXPIRY OF HIS TENURE ALONG WITH A CONFIRMATION BY SUCH DIRECTOR THAT
THERE ARE NO OTHER MATERIAL REASONS OTHER THAN THOSE PROVIDED:

Ms. Jyoti Batra resigned as a Non- Executive Independent Director from the Board of the
Company w.e.f. 23.07.2024 before expiry of her term of appointment during the Financial Year
ended March 31st, 2025.

Further, she has confirmed that she has resigned from the Directorship of the Company due to
her personal reasons and pre-occupancy. She has also confirmed that there is no other material
reason other than those provided by her.

Notes:

a. Based on the respective disclosures made by the Directors including Independent Directors,
no Director of the Company holds the office of Director in more than seven (7) listed entities,
and was not a member of the more than 10 (ten) Committees or acted as Chairperson of more
than five (5) Committees, across all the companies in which he / she was a Director. The
necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have been made by the Directors.

b. None of the Directors held Directorships in more than twenty (20) Indian companies including
ten (10) public limited companies.

c. None of the Independent Directors of the Company served as Independent Director in more
than 7 listed companies.

d. None of the Independent Directors is a Whole — Time Director in any other company.
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e. All Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

f. Formal letters of appointment have been issued to the Independent Directors.

g. The meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 22.04.2024.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board
Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The Code has been
communicated to the Directors and the members of Senior Management. The said Code of
Conduct is available at the link www.gargfurnacelimited.com. The Company has received
confirmations from the Directors and Senior Management regarding compliance with the Code
for the year ended 31st March, 2025. A declaration to this effect signed by Managing Director
of the Company is annexed to this report.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Board of Directors has constituted various Committees of Board in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations to take informed decisions in the
best interest of the Company. These Committees monitor the activities falling within their terms
of reference. These Committees play an important role in overall management of day to day
affairs and governance of the Company. Details on the role and composition of these
committees, including the no. of meetings held during the financial year and attendance at
meetings are provided below:

(A) Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee
comprises of 3 (Three) members with the Chairman of the Committee being an Independent
Director. The Audit Committee met on 5 (five) occasions viz. 30.05.2024, 23.07.2024,
07.09.2024, 14.11.2024 and 14.02.2025 to deliberate on various matters. Not more than 120
days lapsed between any two consecutive meetings of the Audit Committee during the year.
The necessary quorum was present at all the Meetings. The Chairman of the Audit committee
was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company for addressing shareholders
queries.

The composition of the Audit Committee as on 31.03.2025 and particulars of meetings
attended by the members during the financial year 2024-25 are given hereunder:

Sr. | Name of the Director Position Category No. of

No. Meeting
s
attended

1. | Ms. Amandeep Kaur Chairman Non-Executive Independent 5

2. | Ms. Purti Katyal Member Non-Executive Independent 5

3. | Ms. Shruti Gupta# Member Non-Executive Independent 3

4. | Ms. Jyoti Batra* Member Non-Executive Independent 2

*Ms. Jyoti Batra has resigned w.e.f. 23.07.2024 from the Board of the Company as a Non-
Executive Independent Director.
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#Ms. Shruti Gupta was appointed as a Non- Executive Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f. 23.07.2024.

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Audit committee.

Ms. Amandeep kaur, the Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual
General Meeting held on 30.09.2024.

The members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and bring in expertise in
field of finance, taxation etc. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line
with Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder. The brief description of the terms of reference of the
Committee is described below:

Power of the Audit Committee:

1. Toinvestigate any activity within its terms of reference.

2. Toseek information from any employee.

3. Toobtain outside legal or other professional advice.

4. Tosecure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

Role of the Audit Committee

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient
and credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the company;

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors;

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s
report thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular
reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c¢. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit
findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
g. Modified Opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission
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to the Board for approval;

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document /
prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring
the utilization of proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or
qualified institutions placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the
Board to take up steps in this matter;

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties;

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,
adequacy of the internal control systems;

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors;

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.

21. reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding
company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing
as on the date of coming into force of this provision.

22. consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.
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In addition to the above, the following items will be reviewed by the Audit Committee:-

23.
24.

25.
26.

management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;

internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the of the chief internal auditor
shall be subject to review by the audit committee;

27. statement of deviations:

(B)

(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if

applicable, submitted to BSE/Stock exchange in terms of Regulation 32(1) of Listing

Regulations.
(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of Listing Regulations.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of 3 (Three) members (all are Non-
Executive Directors) and the Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. During the
year under review, the Committee met 2 (Two) time on 23.07.2024 and 07.09.2024. The
necessary quorum was present at the meeting. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to
the Committee. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration committee was present at
the last Annual General Meeting of the Company for addressing shareholders queries.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31.03.2025 and
particulars of meetings attended by the members are given below:

Sr. | Name of the Director Position Category No. of

No. Meeting
s
attended

1. | Ms. Amandeep Kaur Chairman Non-Executive Independent 2

2. | Ms. Purti Katyal Member Non-Executive Independent 2

3. | Ms. Shruti Gupta# Member Non-Executive Independent 1

4. | Ms. Jyoti Batra* Member Non-Executive Independent 1

*Ms. Jyoti Batra has resigned w.e.f. 23.07.2024 from the Board of the Company as a
Non- Executive Independent Director.

#Ms. Shruti Gupta was appointed as a Non- Executive Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f. 23.07.2024.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in line with
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder.

The brief description of the terms of reference of the Committee is described below:
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e Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

e For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board
and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities
required of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such
description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to
diversity; and

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates.

e Formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the board of
directors;

e Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

e dentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal.

e whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on
the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

e recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior
management.

Performance Evaluation:

In compliance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the listing regulations, the Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of
Independent Directors, Board, Committees and other Directors which includes criteria for
performance evaluation of the non- executive directors. The evaluation of the Independent
Directors was carried out by the Board excluding the director being evaluated and that of the
Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The
exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the
Board's functioning such as composition of the Board & committees, experience & competencies,
performance of specific duties & obligations, governance issues etc. The performance was
reviewed on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the Board
and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. The Directors express their satisfaction over
the entire evaluation process.

(C) Stakeholders Relationship Committee
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(D)

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of 3 (Three) members and the Chairman
of the Committee is Ms. Amandeep Kaur, Non-Executive Independent Director of the
Company. During the year under review, Committee met on 1 (One) occasions viz. 06.01.2025
to deliberate on various matters. The necessary quorum was present at all the meetings.

The Committee looks into various queries / issues relating to shareholders/ non-receipt of
dividend, Annual Report. Ms. Supreena Tagra, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of
the Company. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Committee. The Chairman
of the Stakeholders Relationship committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting
of the Company for addressing shareholders queries.

The table below highlights the composition and attendance of the Members of the Committee
as on March 31, 2025:

Sr. | Name of the Director Position Category No. of

No. Meeting
s
attended

1. | Ms. Amandeep Kaur Chairman Non-Executive Independent 1

2. | Ms. Purti Katyal Member Non-Executive Independent 1

3. | Ms. Shruti Gupta# Member Non-Executive Independent 1

4. | Ms. Jyoti Batra* Member Non-Executive Independent -

*Ms. Jyoti Batra has resigned w.e.f. 23.07.2024 from the Board of the Company as a
Non- Executive Independent Director.
#Ms. Shruti Gupta was appointed as a Non- Executive Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f. 23.07.2024.

Terms of Reference
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may be
required by the stock exchanges from time to time, the following:

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company, including complaints in
respect of transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt
of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.;

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of
various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the
qguantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of 3 (Three) members and the
Chairman of the Committee is Ms. Amandeep Kaur, Non-Executive Independent Director of
the Company. During the year under review, Committee met on 1 (One) occasions viz.
06.01.2025 to deliberate on various matters. The necessary quorum was present at all the
meetings.
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The Committee looks into various queries / issues relating to CSR spent/ uspent amount,
ongoing projects and CSR activities. Ms. Supreena Tagra, Company Secretary is the
Compliance Officer of the Company. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the
Committee. The Chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship committee was present at the last
Annual General Meeting of the Company for addressing shareholders queries.

The table below highlights the composition and attendance of the Members of the Committee as on

March 31, 2025:

Sr. | Name of the Director Position Category No. of

No. Meeting
s
attended

1. | Ms. Amandeep Kaur Chairman Non-Executive Independent 1

2. | Ms. Purti Katyal Member Non-Executive Independent 1

3. | Ms. Shruti Gupta# Member Non-Executive Independent 1

4. | Ms. Jyoti Batra* Member Non-Executive Independent -

*Ms. Jyoti Batra has resigned w.e.f. 23.07.2024 from the Board of the Company as a

Non- Executive Independent Director.

#Ms. Shruti Gupta was appointed as a Non- Executive Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f. 23.07.2024.

Details of Shareholder’s complaints Received, Solved and Pending:

Particulars

No. of

Complaints

Particulars

No. of
Complaints

Pending as on 01-04-
2024

0

year

Resolved during the

Received during the year| 0

2025

Pending as on 31-03- 0

No complaints remained unattended/ pending for more than thirty days. The Company has no
share transfers/ transmission pending as on March 31, 2025. Further, no shareholders
complaint/ grievance were received under ‘SCORES’ during the Financial Year 2024-2025.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

Particulars of senior management including the changes therein since the close of the previous

financial year.

Sr. Name Designation PAN Date of | Changes

No. Appointment

1. ) i _ AAQPG7293R | 01/08/2015 No changes
inder Garg ing Director since the close

2. , _ ACBPG7170L | 14/11/2015 of the
aneera Garg  fime Director previous

3. AQRPG5512C | 14/08/2023 | financial year
hak Garg ing Director

4, Ms. Company BDHPT9401P 15/07/2022
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Supreena Secretary and
Tagra Compliance
Officer
5. Mr. Chief Financial | AJMPB6645F 25/01/2016
Gurmeet Officer
Singh Battu

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The meeting of Independent Directors was held on 22.04.2024 inter alia:

o Toreview the performance of Non-Independent directors and the Board as a whole;

o Toreview the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, and;

« Toassess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the
Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively

and reasonably perform their duties.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

Directors with Pecuniary Relationship or Business Transaction with the Company:

The Board comprises with Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors, they have not
been paid any sitting fees to any of the directors of the Company.

Details of Remuneration paid during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 is as follows:

(Amount in Rs.)

Sr. No. Name of the Director Remuneration Total
1. Sh. Devinder Garg 1200000 1200000
2. Smt. Vaneera Garg 1200000 1200000
3. Sh. Toshak Garg 1500000 1500000
4. Ms. Amandeep Kaur - -

5. Ms. Purti Katyal - -

6. Ms. Jyoti Batra* - -

7. Ms. Shruti Gupta# - -

CRITERIA FOR MAKING PAYMENTS TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

As per the Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company, the Board, on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, reviews and approves the
remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and Executive Directors. The Board
and the Committee considers the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and approving the
remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel and Executive Directors.
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The remuneration, as the case may be paid to the Executive Directors, shall be in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under for the time being in force or as
may be decided by the Committee / Board / Shareholders.

Note:

There are no stock options, pension, bonuses, benefits, service contracts, severance fees, fixed
component and performance linked incentives along-with the performance criteria to the
Directors.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

1. The details of the last three Annual General Meeting(s) of the Company are given as

follows:
Year Day and Date Time Venue No. of
Special
Resolutions
2023-2024 |Monday, 30"  |01:00 P.M. | Registered  Office  of theg
September, Company situated at
2024 Kanganwal Road V.P.O. Jugiana

G T. Road, Ludhiana- 141120
2022-2023 | Friday, 22™ 01:00 P.M. | Registered  Office of the g
December, 2023 Company situated at

Kanganwal Road V.P.O. Jugiana
G T. Road, Ludhiana- 141120

2021-2022 |Friday, 30" 10:30 Registered Office of the|g
September, A.M. Company situated at
2022 Premises Kanganwal Road

V.P.O. Jugiana G T. Road,
Ludhiana- 141120

POSTAL BALLOT/ EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

The Company has not conducted any Postal Ballot Exercise and Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 and no Special Resolution is
proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

a) Prior intimation of the Board Meeting to consider and approve the Unaudited/
Audited Financial Results of the Company is submitted to the Bombay Stock
Exchange [“BSE” / “Stock exchange”] and also disseminated on the website of the
Company.

b) The Quarterly/ Half Yearly / Annual Financial Results of the Company are published
generally through Financial Express (English Newspaper), Desh Sewak (Punjabi
Newspaper) and are also posted on the Company’s website i.e.
www.gargfurnacelimited.com
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¢ The Company’s website i.e. www.gargfurnacelimited.com also contains an exclusive
section on ‘Investors’ which enables them to access information such as Quarterly /
Half Yearly / Annual Financial Statements, Corporate Governance, Shareholding
Patterns.

d) Whether it also displays official news releases- Not Applicable

e) SEBI Complaints Redress System (“SCORES”) is a web based complaint redress system.
Action Taken Reports (ATRs) on the investor complaint(s) are uploaded on the SCORES
for online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint by the Company and
its current status.

f) Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: No presentations have
been made to institutional investors or to the analysts during the year under review.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Day & Date of 52 Annual General Monday, 15th Day of September, 2025

Meeting

Financial Year 2024-2025

Time At 11:00 A.M.

Venue
Registered Office of the Company situated at
Kanganwal Road V.P.O. Jugiana G T. Road, Ludhiana-
141120

Date of Book Closure September 09, 2025 to September 15, 2025 (both days
inclusive)

Listing onStock Exchanges The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the
following Stock Exchange:-
BSE Limited (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai - 400 001.

ISIN INE194E01015

Dividend Payment Date Not Applicable

Listing Fee / Annual Custody Fee:

The Annual Listing Fee has been paid to BSE for the financial year 2025-2026. The Company has
also made the payment of Annual Custody fee to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for the financial year 2025-2026.

In case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the reason
thereof: Not Applicable

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:

SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
UNIT: Garg Furnace Limited

D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial, Area,
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Phase-I, New Delhi-110020.
Tel: 011- 64732681-88
Web: www.skylinerta.com

Share Transfer System:

www.gargfurnacelimited.com

Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been constituted to approve all the transfers,
transmission, Demat/ remat of shares etc. and all the share transfer/transmission/transposition/

dematerialization/ re-materialization are handled by our Registrar and Transfer Agentsi.e.

Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. During the year under review, requests received, if any for
transfer/ transmission/ dematerialization/ re-materialization of shares etc. has been duly
completed as per the prescribed provisions and regulations of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015

along with circulars issued thereunder.

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2025:

S. | Distribution No. of % age of No. No. of % age of
No. | of No. of Shareholder of Shares shares held
Shares s Shareholders held

1| 1-500 2749 85.77 319728 6.94

2| 501-1000 214 6.68 175940 3.82

3| 1001-2000 102 3.18 150341 3.26

4 | 2001-3000 38 1.19 96919 2.10

5| 3001-4000 20 0.62 71028 1.54

6 | 4001-5000 14 0.44 65313 1.42

7 | 5001-10000 33 1.03 251092 5.45

8 | 10001 to above 35 1.09 3878339 75.47

Total 3205 100.00 5008700 100.00

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: NIL

Shareholding pattern as on 31.03.2025:

Category No. of Shares % age
Promoters & Promoters Group 2674901 53.41
Bodies Corporate, Mutual Fund, Public and Others 2333799 46.59

Dematerialization of Equity Shares and Liquidity:

As on March 31, 2025, 89.26% of the total equity share capital of the Company (4470785 Equity
Shares) were held in de-materialised form. The Company has entered into agreements with
National Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL) for de-materialization of shares through Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd., Registrar &

Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company.
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Secretarial Compliance Report

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 read with
Regulation 24(A) of the Listing Regulations, directed listed entities to conduct Annual Secretarial
compliance audit from a Practicing Company Secretary of all applicable SEBI Regulations and
circulars/guidelines issued there under. The said Secretarial Compliance report is in addition to
the Secretarial Audit Report by Practicing Company Secretaries under Form MR- 3 and is
required to be submitted to Stock Exchanges within 60 days of the end of the financial year.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

As stipulated by SEBI under Regulation 76 of the SEBI (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018, a Company Secretary in whole time practice carries out Share Capital Audit to
reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This
audit is carried out every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchange
where the Company’s Shares are listed. The audit confirms that the total Listed and Paid-up
capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in de-materialized form
(held with NSDL and CDSL) and total number of shares in physical form.

Outstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion instruments,
conversion date and impact on equity:

18,00,000 (Eighteen Lakh) warrants of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and an
issue price of Rs. 195/- (Rupees One Hundred and Ninety-Five only) each, including premium of
Rs. 185/- each is outstanding as on 31.03.2025.

Plant Locations: NIL

Disclosure of Commodity price risk and commodity hedging activities: Not Applicable

Address for Correspondence:

Company Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA)

The Company Secretary M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd, D-153 A, 1st Floor,
Garg Furnace Limited Okhla Industrial, Area, Phase-l, New Delhi-110020. Tel:
Kanganwal Road, V.P.O. Jugiana, G.T. Road, 011- 64732681-88 Web: www.skylinerta.com

Ludhiana-141120
Website: www.gargfurncace@yahoo.com
Ph. No. 0161-2512285

For any assistance regarding Share Transfer(s), Transmission(s), Change of Address, issue of
Duplicates/ Lost share certificate(s)/De-materialisation/ Re-materialisation of Share(s) and
other relevant matters please write to the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company.

Further, Members are required to note that, in respect of shares held in de-materialized form,
they will have to correspond with their respective Depository Participants (DPs) for any change
related to Address, Bank details or any other related matter.

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the
relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme
or any scheme or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India
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or abroad: On July 31, 2024 from CIRISIL Ratings Limited received CIRISIL BBB-/Stable (Assigned)

link for the same is Rating Rationale.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have
potential conflict with the interests of Company at large:

As on March 31, 2025, Related Party Transactions was entered into with Group Companies
and with related parties as per given at Note No. 38 to the Financial Statements of the
Company. All the related party transactions were in the ordinary course of business and on
Arm’s length basis and are not in conflict with the interest of the Company.

Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties and strictures imposed on the
company by Stock Exchange, SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to
capital markets, during the last three years.

The Company had received notices for non-compliances of regulations of SEBI (LODR),
Regulations, 2015 during the last three years details of the same is given below:

www.gargfurnacelimited.com

Regulations Quarter/Month Date of Due Date Date of Whether Total Fine | Fine
Notice Submission first levied | Outstanding
(Review /subsequent | (incl.GST@18%)
letter) and
consecutive
non-
compliance
SOP-Reg-29(2) 29(3) Aug-21 14-Sep-21 - - First 11800 11800
SOP-Reg-18(1) Mar-22 20-May-22 - - First 212400 212400
29-Jun-22 30-May-22 Not First 70800 70800
SOP-Reg- 24A Mar-22 Submitted
SOP-Reg-31 Jun-22 16-Aug-22 | »1.07-2022 | 29-07-2022 First 18880 18880
SOP-Reg-17(1) Mar-23 22-05-2023 | 21-04-2023 442500 442500
SOP-Reg-19(1)/19(2) Mar-23 22-05-2023 | 21-04-2023 177000 177000

Further, the Company has paid the penalty after settlement and waive off aggregate Amount
Rs. 638701/~ (including GST of Rs. 97333/-) on 19.10.2023

Further, the Company has complied with all requirements specified under the Listing
Regulations as well as other regulations and SEBI guidelines.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing
Regulations, the Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism for Directors
and employees to report to the management about the unethical behaviour, fraud or violation
of Company's code of conduct. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees and Directors who use such mechanism and makes provision for
direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. None of the
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personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee. Further the Audit
Committee reviews and ensures the adequacy of the system laid down by the Company for
the said purpose and no concern was reported during the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025.
The said policy is also posted on the website of the Company and the web link for the
same is www.gargfurnacelimited.com

Weblink where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed:
As on March 31, 2025, your Company does not have any Subsidiary.

Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions:

Your Company has also framed a Policy on Related Party Transactions for purpose of
identification and monitoring of such transactions in line with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, which can also be accessed from the Company’s
website at www.gargfurnacelimited.com

Other Policies:

Your Company has also framed the Policies (i) the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and (ii) the Code of Conduct as required
under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (iii) Policy on inquiry in case of
leak of unpublished price sensitive information (UPSI) and the same is available on the website
of Company at www.gargfurnacelimited.com

Secretarial Compliance Report:

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 read with
Regulation 24(A) of the Listing Regulations, directed listed entities to conduct Annual
Secretarial compliance audit from a Practicing Company Secretary of all applicable SEBI
Regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder. The said Secretarial Compliance
report is in addition to the Secretarial Audit Report by Practicing Company Secretaries under
Form MR-3 and is required to be submitted to Stock Exchanges within 60 days of the end of
Financial year.

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary

Certificate as required under Part C of Schedule V of Listing Regulations, received from Smt.
Pooja Damir Miglani of M/s. PDM & Associates (C.P. 25003), Practicing Company Secretary,
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as directors of the Company by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority was
placed before the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 14.08.2025.

Disclosure of Commodity price risk and commodity hedging activities: Not Applicable

+ Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Funds utilised for making Vaneera
Industries Limited a 51% Subsidiary of Garg Furnace Limited.

Recommendations of any committee In the financial year 2024-2025, the Board has accepted all
the recommendations of all its committee.

Fees paid to Statutory Auditors: During the year under review, company paid Audit fees of Rs.
4,50,000/- per annum inclusive of certification charges and out of pocket expensive to Statutory
Auditors.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
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Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:
The Company has in place an effective mechanism for dealing with complaints relating to sexual

harassment at workplace. The details relating to the number of complaints received and disposed
of during the financial year 2024-2025 are as under:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year: NIL
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: NIL
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: NIL

Compliance of the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act 1961:
During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions relating
to the Maternity Benefit Act 1961.

Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested by the name and amount: Not applicable.

Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of

incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such
subsidiaries: NIL

Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras (2) to (10)
above, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed:

The Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate Governance Report from sub-
paras(2) to (10) of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015.

Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements of this clause.

As on March 31, 2025, the Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements as
stipulated under Listing Regulations. The status of compliance with discretionary

recommendations and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements as specified in
Regulation 27(1) of the Listing Regulations is being reviewed by the Board.

Discretionary Requirements

The extent to which the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule Il of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, have been
adopted:

The Board

The requirement relating to maintenance of office and reimbursement of expenses of
Non-Executive Chairman is not applicable to the Company since the Chairman of the
Company is an Executive Director.

Shareholders rights

The Company has not adopted the practice of sending out half-yearly declaration of
financial performance to shareholders. Quarterly results as approved by the Board are
disseminated to BSE/Stock Exchange and updated on the website of the Company.
Modified opinion(s) in audit report

There is no modified opinion in the audit report

Reporting of Internal Auditor

In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Act, the Company has
appointed an Internal Auditor who reports to the Audit Committee. Internal audit
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reports submitted on quarterly basis are reviewed by the Audit Committee and
suggestion / directions, if any, are given for necessary action.

. Disclosure of Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements specified in Regulation 17 to
27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) of Listing Regulations:

Pursuant to Schedule V of Listing Regulations, the Company hereby confirms that it has
complied with the corporate governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) inter-alia covering the following subject matter/heads:

-+ Board of Directors

«  Maximum number of directorships

+ Audit Committee

« Nomination and Remuneration Committee

- Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

« Risk Management Committee — Not Applicable
+ Vigil Mechanism

- Related Party Transactions

- Corporate governance requirements with respect to subsidiary of Company - Not
Applicable

- Secretarial Audit and Secretarial Compliance Report

- Obligations with respect to Independent Directors

+ Obligations with respect to Directors and senior management

« Other Corporate governance requirements as stipulated under the Regulations

- Dissemination of various information on the website of the Company w.r.t clauses (b)
to (i) of Regulation 46(2).
Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account
(1) The listed entity shall disclose the following details in its annual report, as long as there are
shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account, as applicable:
(a) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense
account lying at the beginning of the year; NIL
(b) number of shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of shares from
suspense account during the year; NIL
(c) number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account
during the year; NIL
(d) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense
account lying at the end of the year; NIL

(e) that the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares
claims the shares; Not Applicable
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+ Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities (1) Information disclosed under
clause 5A of paragraph A of Part A of Schedule Il of these regulations: During the year under
review, the company has not entered into any such kind of agreements.

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors
For Garg Furnace Limited
(Devinder Garg)

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 01665456

Date: 14.08.2025
Place: Ludhian
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

I hereby declare that all the Members of Board of Directors and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and

Senior Management for the year ended 315t March 2025.

For Garg Furnace Limited

Place: Ludhiana Devinder Garg
Date: 30.05.2025 Chairman and Managing Director
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
We the undersigned hereby certify that:

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st
March, 2025 and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
listed entity during the year ended 31st March, 2025 which are fraudulent, illegal or
violative of the listed entity’s code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the
audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of
which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

D. We have confirmed that there were no:

(1) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
(2) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(3) instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant

Place: Ludhiana For Garg Furnace Limited
Date: 30.05.2025

Devinder Garg Gurmeet Singh Battu
Chairman and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To,

The Members

Garg Furnace Limited

(CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385)

1. We have been approached by Garg Furnace Limited (“Company”) to examine the
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, as stipulated
in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the
“Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, for the financial year ended on
31st March, 2025.

2. Management’s Responsibility
The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The management shall devise adequate systems, internal
controls and processes to monitor and ensure the same.

3. Our Responsibility
Our responsibility is limited to conduct an examination of the systems, internal controls
and processes adopted by the Company and implementation thereof to monitor and
ensure with the conditions of Corporate Governance and report thereon.

4. Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on 31st March 2025.

5. Disclaimer
5.1 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

5.2 The report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

For PDM & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

Pooja Damir Miglani
(FCS No. 25988)
(C. P No. 25003)

Place: Ludhiana

Date: 14.08.2025

UDIN: A025988G001018562

Peer Review Certificate No: 6237/2024
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of

Garg Furnace Limited
Kanganwal Road, V.P.0O. Jugiana, G.T. Road, Ludhiana-141120, Punjab

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received
from the Directors of Garg Furnace Limited having CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385 and
having registered office at Kanganwal Road, V.P.O. Jugiana, G.T. Road, Ludhiana-141120,
Punjab (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications
(including Directors ldentification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as
considered necessary and explanations furnished to me/us by the Company & its officers,
we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below
for the Financial Year ending on 31°' March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

www.gargfurnacelimited.com

Sr. No. | Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1 Sh. Devinder Garg 01665456 01.08.2015
2 Smt. Vaneera Garg 01283990 14.11.2015
3 Sh. Toshak Garg 03503511 14.08.2023
4. Mrs. Amandeep Kaur 07728094 31.03.2023
5 Mrs. Jyoti Batra* 10009491 27.04.2023
6 Mrs. Shruti Gupta# 10310259 23.07.2024
7 Mrs. Purti Katyal 09251560 14.08.2023

*Mrs. Jyoti Batra (DIN: 10009491) has resigned as Independent Director w.e.f. 23 July 2024

on the Board of
the Company.
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#Mrs. Shruti Gupta (DIN: 10310259) appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
for a period of five years w.e.f. 23rd July, 2024 and Shareholders had approved her
appointed in 51* Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the basis of our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For PDM & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

Pooja Damir Miglani
(FCS No. 25988)
(C. P No. 25003)

Place: Ludhiana

Date: 14.08.2025

UDIN: A025988G001018540

Peer Review Certificate No: 6237/2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

GARG FURNACE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Garg Furnace Limited
(“the Company”) (CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and its profit, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

S.no.

Key Audit Matter

Auditors’ Response

Revenue recognition:

note 2(xiv) and note 24 of the
financial statements. The
Company’s sales revenue mainly
arose from sale of Iron and Steel
products such as M.S. Round, Billet,
Ingot, Wire Rod etc. The Company
recognizes sales revenue based on

Principal Audit Procedures:

We evaluated the design of internal
controls over recognition of
revenue in the appropriate period
in accordance with the Company’s
accounting policy. On a sample
basis, we tested the operating
effectiveness of the internal control
relating to determination of point

the teljms an(ir }fondltlons _Og in time at which the transfer of
tr_ansactlons, whic vary wit control of the goods occurs.
different customers. For sales

transactions in a certain period
around balance sheet date, it is

We tested the relevant information

: technology systems used in
essential to ensure whether the recording revenue including
transfer of control of the goods by company’s  system  generated

the Company to the customer
occurs before the balance sheet
date or otherwise. Considering that
there is significant volume of sales
transactions close to the year end,
involving material amounts and
such revenue recognition is subject
to whether transfer of control to
the customers has occurred before
the balance sheet date or
otherwise, we consider the risk of
revenue from sale of goods being
recognised in the incorrect period,
a key audit matter.

reports, based on which selection of
samples was undertaken.

On sample basis, we performed test
of details of sales recorded close to
the year-end through following
procedures:

i) Analysed the terms and
conditions of the underlying
contract with the customer, and

ii) Verified evidence for transfer of
control of the goods prior to the
balance sheet date or otherwise
from relevant supporting
documents.

91




GARG FURNACE | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 www.gargfurnacelimited.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

GARG FURNACE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Garg Furnace Limited
(“the Company”) (CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and its profit, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

S.no.

Key Audit Matter

Auditors’ Response

Revenue recognition:

note 2(xiv) and note 24 of the
financial statements. The
Company’s sales revenue mainly
arose from sale of Iron and Steel
products such as M.S. Round, Billet,
Ingot, Wire Rod etc. The Company
recognizes sales revenue based on

Principal Audit Procedures:

We evaluated the design of internal
controls over recognition of
revenue in the appropriate period
in accordance with the Company’s
accounting policy. On a sample
basis, we tested the operating
effectiveness of the internal control
relating to determination of point

the teljms an(il. }Sondltlons _O}f in time at which the transfer of
tr_ansactlons, which vary - WIth | 1 40] of the goods occurs.
different customers. For sales

transactions in a certain period
around balance sheet date, it is

We tested the relevant information

: technology systems used in
essential to ensure whether the recording revenue including
transfer of control of the goods by company’s  system  generated

the Company to the customer
occurs before the balance sheet
date or otherwise. Considering that
there is significant volume of sales
transactions close to the year end,
involving material amounts and
such revenue recognition is subject
to whether transfer of control to
the customers has occurred before
the balance sheet date or
otherwise, we consider the risk of
revenue from sale of goods being
recognised in the incorrect period,
a key audit matter.

reports, based on which selection of
samples was undertaken.

On sample basis, we performed test
of details of sales recorded close to
the year-end through following
procedures:

i) Analysed the terms and
conditions of the underlying
contract with the customer, and

ii) Verified evidence for transfer of
control of the goods prior to the
balance sheet date or otherwise
from relevant supporting
documents.
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Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the Financial Statements and our Auditor’s Report
thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance and describe actions applicable in the applicable laws and
regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
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related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an Auditor’'s Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the
related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
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the date of our Auditor’s Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial
Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s
Report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Financial Statements — Refer Note 33

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, if
any, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v.  The company has not declared, paid or propose to pay any dividend during the
year.

vi.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with and the audit trial has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for the record retention.

96



GARG FURNACE | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 www.gargfurnacelimited.com

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For and on behalf of

Ashwani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 000497N

by the hand of

Arvind Jain

Place: Ludhiana Partner
Dated: 30th May, 2025 Membership No.:097549
UDIN: 25097549BMGQIY 7044
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Garg Furnace Limited of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of
Garg Furnace Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
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included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on the criteria
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for internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For and on behalf of

Ashwani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 000497N
by the hand of

Arvind Jain

Partner

Membership No.:097549

UDIN: 25097549BMGQIY 7044

Place: Ludhiana
Dated: 30th May, 2025
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Garg Furnace
Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
we state that:

1. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment. The Company does
not have any intangible assets.

(b)The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of the Property
Plant and Equipment at reasonable intervals. In accordance with this programme,
certain Property Plant and Equipment were verified during the year, and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company has all the original title deeds of immovable properties in its own
name.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or
intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31st March, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

il. (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In

our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable, and, the coverage and
procedure of such verification is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its operation. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for
cach class of inventory were noticed between the physical stock of inventory and the
books of accounts.
(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause
3(i1)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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iii. The Company has made investments in other companies during the year. It has not
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties.

(a) The company has not provided loans or advances in the nature of loans, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity, hence reporting under clause
3(iii)(a) is not applicable to the company.

(b) The terms and conditions in respect of investments are not prejudicial to the
company’s interest.

(c) The company has not given any loans and advances in the nature of loans during
the year, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(c), (d), (e) and (f) is not applicable to the
company.

iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investments made. The company has not given any
loans, guarantee and any security to any person during the year.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from the public. Hence, reporting under Clause 3(v) of the order is not
applicable.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company

pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of Cost
records under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
have, however, not made a detailed examination of such records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii.  (a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable except the following: -

Sr. No | Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues Amount | Period to
(in  Rs. | which amount
Lakhs) relates

1. The  Punjab  Labour | Punjab Labour | Rs. 2.50 | Up to
Welfare Fund Act, 1965 | Welfare Fund Financial year
2024-25
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(b)There are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause(a) above which have not been
deposited on account of a dispute.

viii.  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

iX. (a) The company has not defaulted in any repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and the term loans
outstanding at the beginning of the year have been utilised for the purpose for which
they were obtained and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) The company has not raised funds for short-term basis, hence reporting under
clause 3(ix)(d) is not applicable.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate companies,
hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate companies,
hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

X. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further

public offer (Including Debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) During the year, the Company has made a preferential allotment of 400000 equity
shares at a price of X 195/- per share to the promoter group. The Company has
complied with requirements of Section 42 of Act with respect to such preferential
allotment and the amounts so raised have been used for the purposes for which the
funds were raised.

Xi. (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this
report.

(c) No whistle-blower complaints were received during the year by the Company.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

xiii.  In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties
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and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.  a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to
the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures.

xv.  In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi.  In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the
Order is not applicable.

xvil. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the

year.

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

XX. (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the
year.
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(b) There is no amount remaining unspent under section (5) of section 135 of Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the

year.

For and on behalf of
Ashwani & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 000497N
by the hand of

Arvind Jain

Place: Ludhiana Partner

Dated: 30th May, 2025 Membership No.:097549
UDIN: 25097549BMGQIY 7044
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1. Corporate Information
Garg Furnace Limited (“the Company”) (CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385) is a public company
domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act. Its equity shares are
listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). The registered office of the Company is
situated at Kanganwal Road Jugiana G.T. road, Ludhiana. The Company is engaged in the
business of manufacturing and trading of Iron and Steel products such as M.S. Round, Billet,
Ingot, Wire Rod etc.

The Financial Statements are approved for issue by Companies Board of Directors on 30™ May,
2025

2. A. Material accounting policies / critical accounting estimates and judgements
I. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“IND AS”) specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended from
time to time. The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis and all the
applicable Ind AS effective as on the reporting date have been complied with.

II.  Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual
basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

III. Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the company is Indian rupee (INR). The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to nearest lakh up to two decimals,
unless otherwise stated.

IV. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. The application of accounting policies that
require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgements and use of
assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in notes. Accounting estimates
could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as management become aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the
period in which changes are made, and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
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VI.

(i)
(ii)

Current versus Non- current classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A Liability is treated as current when:
It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 —Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are
determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither
supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are
they based on available market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period or each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

¢ Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions

e Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

e Investment in unquoted equity shares financial instruments

¢ Financial instruments

VII. Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment if any. Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated. The Cost of an item of
Property, Plant and Equipment comprises:

» Its purchase price net of recoverable taxes wherever applicable and any attributable expenditure
(directly or indirectly) for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

»  Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

» Initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located, if any, the obligation for which an entity incurs either where the item is acquired or
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as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to
produce inventories during that period.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight line method as
per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013

Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the asset is
sold or discarded.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of
assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under Capital work-in-progress. The
depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed periodically and at the end of
each reporting period.

VIII. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amount of amortisation and impairment if
any. Intangible assets are amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a
straight line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an
identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence
etc. The amortization method, estimated useful lives are reviewed periodically and at end of each
reporting period.

IX. Impairment of Non-financial assets

The impairment assessment for all assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the assets or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

X. Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and stores is computed on FIFO basis plus
direct expenditure, Cost of work in progress and finished goods comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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XI. Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expense in the period in which they are incurred.

XII. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. A present obligation
that arises from past events where it is neither probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle nor a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non
- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company. Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in
the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income
is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

XIII. Foreign currency translation
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Garg Furnace
Limited functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency translations are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in profit or loss.

XIV. Revenue recognition

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS 115) - ‘Revenue from
contracts with customers’.
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Revenue from sale of products is recognized upon transfer of control to customers. Revenue is
measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in
exchange for transferring distinct goods to a customer as specified in a contract, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, taxes and duties collected on behalf of
the Government). A receivable is recognized upon satisfaction of performance obligations as per
the Contracts.

"To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Company follows a 5-step process:
Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

Dok L=

Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied."

Use of significant Judgements in Revenue Recognition

XV.

Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price
could be either a fixed amount of consideration or variable consideration with elements such as
volume discounts, price concessions, incentives etc. The estimated amount of variable
consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is
reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific recognition criteria’s like
exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods. When deciding
the most appropriate basis for presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both the legal form and
substance of the agreement between the Company and its customers are reviewed to determine
each party’s respective role in the transaction.

Other Operating Revenue
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

Claims receivables on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is
reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

Income Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from
'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
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expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and incurred tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the income taxes
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

XVI. Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash in hand, demand deposits held with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

XVII. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
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Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) on
the basis of following:

e  The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
e  The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised Cost:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions

are met:

e  The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and

e  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through OCI:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following

conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is
measured at amortized cost or at fair value through OCL

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.
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Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are
designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL:

Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 —
Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. The Company calculates the
expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit
loss experience.

Derecognition of financial instruments:

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

XVIII. Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

XIX. Employee benefits

(i) Short term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, short term compensated absence and ex-gratia including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be
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paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefits
obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Post-employment obligations
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans
is the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less the
fair value of plan assets (if any). The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually as per
Valuation report given by Actuary on the basis of Guidance issued by The Actuarial Society of
India.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per
local regulations. The Company has not further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

XX. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker [CODM]. The managing committee is considered to be the
‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ (CODM) as defined in IND AS 108. The Operating Segment
is the level at which discrete financial information is available. The CODM allocates resources
and assess performance at this level. In the context of Ind AS 108 on 'Segment Reporting', the
results are considered to constitute a single reportable entity/ business segment for which the
operating results are regularly reviewed by the company's Chief Operating Decision Maker.

XXI. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
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facility will be drawn down. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a
breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting
date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting
period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a
consequence of the breach.

XXII. Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: The profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

e  The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

e  The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

XXIII. Assets Held for Sale;
Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held
for sale” when all of the following criteria’s are met: (i) decision has been made to sell. (ii) the
assets are available for immediate sale in its present condition. (iii) the assets are being actively
marketed and (iv) sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the
Balance Sheet date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets
held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

In view of the management, the current assets (financial & other) have a value on realization in
the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the
balance sheet.

XXIV. Events occurring after balance sheet date

There are no major events which have occurred after the balance sheet date requiring disclosure
in the financial statements.
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Particulars Nofes As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, Plamt and Equipiment 3 1,445,323 1,409.53
b) Capital work-in-progress 3l 11.55 -
) Finaneiand Assets
1} Investments 4 402.80 38.57
a} Trade Receivalies 5 80.24 93.80
m) Other fmancial assets 6 283.55 28355
&) Cther non-current assets 7 20.82 32.25
Total Non Current Assets 2,244,29 1,857.70
Current assets
a) Inventories 8 1,616.54 762.81
b} Financial assets
1} Trade Receivables 9 232242 2,253.59
1) Cash and Cash equivalents 0 997.46 597.48
iy 3ank balanees other tan (n) above 11 276,78 264,13
W OGther limaneral asset 12 39.98 36.85
¢} Currert Tax Assets {Noty 13 23.18 22,51
d)y Other cunent assets i4 271.03 300,92
Total Current Assets 5,547.39 4,238.29
Towat Assets 7,791.68 6,095,99
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LQUITY
@ Bguity Share capnal 15 500.87 460,87
) Other Equnty 16 5,723.96 441023
Tetal Equity 6,224.83 4.871.10
LIABILITIES
Non-curreat linbilities
o) Finaneial Linbilities
i} Borrowings 17 129.69 140.14
b} Provisions 18 17.40 18.88
Total Non Current Liabitities 147.09 159.02
Current finbilities
a)imancial Liabilives
1) Bomowings i9 1044 9.4)
) Trade payables ;- 26
(A) Total ouistanding dues ol Micro enlerprises and - swall 9.84 2,13
<cnterprises: and
() Total ouistandung dues of ereditors other than micro enlerprises 698.71 868.55
and small enterprises.
1) Other financial liabilities 21 14.42 210N
bi Geher curvent ligbilitics 2 679.59 158,09
<l Provisions 23 676 5.78
Total Current Liabilities 1,419.76 1,005.87
Totul Lquity and Liabilities 7,791.68 6,095.99
Comorate information i
Material aceounung policies 2
See gecompunying noles forming pait of Bnancial slalements 33-51
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For Ashwani & Associates
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Devinder Garg
Managing Director
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Cash Bow statensent for the year ended 31st March, 2025
Al ctunainns oy Lok, wiless othenwise sicatedr

- . For the year cnded on For the ycar ended on
Particaburs 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A Cash flow from operating activities

Profit/(loss} before Tax 763.59 555.84
Adjusoments for:
Depreciguion and amorhisation 164.36 157.04
Net (profit)/ioss on sale of fixed assets (4.28) 01l
Finance costs IR 17.65
Exchange Rate Fluctutions 0.20 .
Adiowances for expecied credit loss and doubtful receivabiles 1042 433
Sundry Balances Writien O . 3 8¢
Sundry Bakances Wrtten Back - (290)
Interest meome on deposits {70.76) (33.92)
111.04 139.11
L. Operating profit before working eapital changues 874.63 694.95
in workmg capital
(Eucreise) in (853.73) 78390
( Encrease) i rade and other receivables (25.45) (562.21)
Increase/(1decrense) in irade payables and other liabilities 351,42 (2.,257.62)
(527.70) {2,035 93)
Cash generated from operations 346.87 (1,340.98)
Taxes paid 32.08 -

. Net cash Bow fromé&used in) operating gelivigies {A} 379.55 (1,340.98) |
i Cagh flew from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipiment 6.75 490

Parchase of propenty, plant and equipment (202.62) {66.19)

(acregse) Decrease i Term Deposits {376.89) (13.98)
. _Interest income on deposits 30.77 35.24

o £ cnsh 0w Trom/(used in) investing netivities (13) (541.99) {40.93)|
€ Net cash low from lnancing setivities:

Repayments From shert team borrowings {1.04) (53 29)
Repayments of long 1eri borrowings (10.44) (273.11)
Moneys received against share warants $85.00 2,242.50
Finance Cost Paid (11.30) (17.11)
Net cush flow [rond(used i) financing activities (C) 562.42 £,899,04
Net change in Cash & ¢ash equivalents (A+B+C) 399.98 517,13
Cash & cush equivalenis as at the heginning of yeir 597.48 80.35
Cash & ensh eqaivalents us at end of the yenr* 997.46 597.48
* Comprises
Balances wah banks in current wceoint and Buluice in Deposit Accouits 975.80 589.34
Cash on hod 1.73 1.14
Chegues on Band 19.87 7.00
LA

L . 997,46 _597.48 |

Carporate infermation |

Material accounting pelicies 2

See gecompunying rotes formiag part of financial statements 33.51

AS pr o veprnt of ever date atfoched
For Ashwani & Associntes

Chartered Accoumants

Lwm Registeation Numbar GU049IN

by the kand o

Arvind Jain
Purnier
MONG 097949

Place Ludhiana
306-05.20z5

Date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

)
S

Managing Director
DIN. 01665456
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Supreena Tagra
Comynay Secreiary
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2025

1. Corporate Information
Garg Furnace Limited (“the Company™) (CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385) is a public company
domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act. Its equity shares are listed
on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). The registered office of the Company is situated at
Kanganwal Road Jugiana G.T. road, lLudhiana. The Company is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and trading of Iron and Steel products such as M.S. Round, Billet, Ingot, Wire Rod etc.

The Financial Statements are approved for issue by Companies Board of Directors on 30" May, 2025

2. A. Material accounting policies / critical accounting estimates and judgements
I.  Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards ("IND AS™) specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. The financial
statements have been prepared on going concern basis and all the applicable Ind AS effective as on the
reporting date have been complied with.

1I.  Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

111, Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the company is Indian rupee (INR). The financial statements are presented in
Indian rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to nearest lakh up to two decimals, unless otherwise
stated.

1V.  Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting
estimates involving complex and subjective judgements and use of assumptions in these financial
statements have been disclosed in notes. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management become aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made, and if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financiai statements.

V. Current versus Non- current classification
The company presents assets and [iabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
Expected to be realized or intended to be soid or consumed in normal operating cycle.
a.Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
b. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
¢.Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. @,.,
‘V : \ P Loy
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2025

A Liability is treated as current when:
a.ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
b. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading.
c.Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 —Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are
determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither

supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they
based on available market data.

FFor assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period or each case.

§ 7 L \ £L
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes 1o Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2025

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above,

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions

e Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

e Investment in unquoted equity shares financial instruments

e Financial instruments

Vil. Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment i any. Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated. The Cost of an item of Property,
Plant and Equipment comprises:

» Hts purchase price net of recoverable taxes wherever applicable and any attributable
expenditure (directly or indirectly) for bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use.

> Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

» Initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located, if any, the obligation for which an entity incurs either where the item is
acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes
other than to produce inventories during that period.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight line method as per the
useful life prescribed in Schedule H to the Companies Act, 2013

Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the asset is sold or
discarded.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance
sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put
1o use before such date are disclosed under Capital work-in-progress. The depreciation method, useful
tives and residual value are reviewed periodically and at the end of each reporting period.

VHE  Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost jess accumulated amount of amortisation and impairment if any.
Intangible assets are amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight line
basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible
assel is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence etc. The amortization
method, estimated useful lives are reviewed periodically and at end of each reporting period.

IX. Impairment of Non-financial assets

The impairment assessment for all assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the assets or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the fast impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is

_-'; Ls il V [/'L"“
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2025

limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and stores is computed on FIFO basis plus direct expenditure,
Cost of work in progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting
rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and

prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other
borrowing costs are expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. A present obligation that
arises from past events where it is neither probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle nor a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non - occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not
recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be
realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a
contingent asset and is recognised.

Foreign currency translation
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”).

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Garg Furnace Limited
functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency translations are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in profit or loss.
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Revenue recognition
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS 115) - ‘Revenue from contracts
with customers’,

Revenue from sale of products is recognized upon transfer of control to customers. Revenue is
measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for
transferring distinct goods to a customer as specified in a contract, excluding amounts collected on
behalf of third parties (for example, taxes and duties collected on behalf of the Government). A
receivable is recognized upon satisfaction of performance obligations as per the Contracts,

"To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Company follows a 5-step process:
Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied."

(7 i VI S

Use of significant Judgements in Revenue Recognition

Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could
be either a fixed amount of consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume
discounts, price concessions, incentives etc. The estimated amount of variable consideration is
adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each
reporting period.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific recognition criteria’s like exposure to
the significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods. When deciding the most
appropriate basis for presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both the legal form and substance of the
agreement between the Company and its customers are reviewed to determine each party’s respective
role in the transaction.

Other Operating Revenue

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the interest rate applicable.

Claims receivables on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is reasonably
certain of their ultimate collection,

Income Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.
. O
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2025

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and incurred tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the income taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash
in hand, demand deposits held with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafis.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial Recognition:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to
borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of
following:

¢ The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

¢ The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised Cost:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions
are met:
e The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and
¢ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through OCI:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following
conditions are met;
o The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is
measured at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are
designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL:

Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 —
Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified

approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. The Company calculates the
expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit

loss experience.
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Derecognition of financial instruments:

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

A financial liability is derccognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

XVIIL. Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

XIX. Employee benefits

(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, short term compensated absence and ex-gratia including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settfed. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefits obligations in the
balance sheet.

(ii) Post-employment obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets (if any). The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually as per Valuation report given
by Actuary on the basis of Guidance issued by The Actuarial Society of India.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has not further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

XX.

XX

XXII.

XXIIL

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker [CODM]. The managing committee is considered to be the ‘Chief
Operating Decision Maker’ (CODM) as defined in IND AS 108. The Operating Segment is the level at
which discrete financial information is available. The CODM allocates resources and assess
performance at this level. In the context of Ind AS 108 on 'Segment Reporting', the results are
considered to constitute a single reportable entity/ business segment for which the operating results are
regularly reviewed by the company's Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will

be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with
the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not
classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval
of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: The profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial

year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:
® The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and
* The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Assets Held for Sale;

Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held for
sale” when all of the following criteria’s are met: (i) decision has been made to sell. (ii) the assets are
available for immediate sale in its present condition. (iii) the assets are being actively marketed and
(iv) sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at

the lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets held for sale are not
depreciated or amortised.

8|

|
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(AN amowms i 2 Lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

4 Iovestments (Non-Current)

As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
Lx_ T M YRRl
Inyestments in Equity Instruments
Quoted
Investment carvied at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVIPL)
(100 Equity shares(Previous Year NIL) of Genesys International Corporation Lid) 0712
LUnguoted
Investment carvied at fair value through OCI(FVTOCT)
2,12.000 (Previous year 2,12,000) fully paid up equity shares of ¥ 10 each of M/s § 39.38 38.57
Forgmgs Private Limited
Investment carvied at Amortised Cost -Refer Note no. 38(b)) 362,70 -
Investment m Related Party
(SES0000(Previous year NIL) pantly pasd up (10% miial call paid) equity shares of Vaneera
Industnies Limied)
PN NN s | s
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof, 0.72 .
Ageregate value of unquoted investments 402,08 3857
Aggregate vilue of impaivment in value of investments . =
5 Trade Receivables (Non-Current)
[Particuls 7 7? - . 77 i As at 31 Mareh, 2028, 3 ch, 2024/
F'rade Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk 1118 12372
I'rade Receivables- credit impaired - -
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss and doubtful receivables (30,94) (29.92)
O S SO 8024 93.80

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivable is based on histonical credit loss experience and adjustment for forward looking information. The

trade rece:

credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and the rates used in provision matrix

I'rnde Receivables Ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2025

of

i credit all e for

bles 15 based on the provision matnix. The provision matrnix takes mto account external and internal nisk factors and historical data of credit losses from vanous customers. The expected

0 ling for the following periods from date of tran
Particulars Less 6 6 months - 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
. months: year| Years’
Wt ndisputed Trade receivables — considered good - . - - - -
() Undisputed Trade Recevables - which have 119 - 6789 69.08]
! n credit nsk R
- o - - 4210) 42,10
sugmiticant increase in credit sl
(1) Disputed Trade Receivables - crecin impaired - - - - - -
Total - - 1.19 - 109.99 111.18
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss and doubtful veceivables (30.94)
Total Trade Receivables 80.24
* There ave no specific due date of payment specified in respect of trade receivables, as such the (rade receivables ageing schedule is prepared on the basis of date of (ransaction,
Frade Receivables Ageing schedule as at 31st Mareh, 2024
= ( ing for the ing periods from_date of transaction*
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - | 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
. R ST months year! Years|
(1) Undisputed ables - considered good 71 L - - . - g -
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have 1.66| 4.40; 75.57 81.63]
significant increase i credit nsk
() Undisputed Trade Recervables - credit impaired - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables ~ considered good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - 284 39.25 42.09
significant increase in credit risk
(1) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Total - - 1.66} 7.24 114.82 123.72
Less: Allowance for expected eredit loss and doubtful receivables (29.92)
Total Trade Receivables ey ————— N 93.80]
* There ave no specific due date of payment specified in respect of trade receivables, as such the trade veceivables ageing schedule is prepared on the basis of date of transaction.
MMlowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
Particalars Financial Yenr
S o 2024-24 2022-23
Allowances for expected credit loss and doubtlul
receivables
Balance at the begmning of the penod 29.92 25.59]
Reversal of provision recogmised - -
Expected credit loss 1.02 433
Amount writien off - -
Balance at the end of the period | 3094 29.92
L
pple <7 Cuvuf/‘f
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CGARG FURNACE LIMITED

Notes 10 0 fimmscial stiateanents Tor the year ended 3151 March, 2028

LATE cmannes ine 3 dakdis, wiless othervise viated)

& Other Financial Assets (Non-Curvent)

Fasticudags As nt 31st March, 2025 Ay at31s1 Mavel, 2024
Secunity Deposits 281.55 281.55
Balanees with donles (o the extent held as margin money against horrowings and other

commitments
tl"m.-(l deposits seccunt with ongaral and remaming matarity of more then tvelve months 2.00 2.00
L 283.55 283,55

T Other Now-Currenst Assels

As a1 315t March, 2025

As nt 31t Mareh, 2024

1) Security Depesiy
u) Advance 10 Supplier

935 -
Advances other than capital advanees ;
ELAT -
- Comsidered goed - Unsecured - 32.25
- Considerved doubtiul - Unsecured 83,02 73.62
Lesy Provision for doubtiul gdvances (83,02} (73.62)
. - 20,52 32.25

As at 3tst March, 2025

As at 35t March, 2024

Rany Matenals

435.59 36525
IFmished Goods and Work In Progress 1,061.65 25963
Stock-in-Trade 10,53 1343
Store and Spares 108,77 124,80
i 1,616,584 762.81
Notes:

9 Trade Reveivables

2 Cost of nvenlory recognised as expense during the ¢

* Vidued at cost or net realisable viilue, whichever is lower
i dnventones inciudes R 72,14 Lakhs us at 3ist March, 2025 and T2 70,34 Lakhs s at 315t Maich, 2024 valugd al net realisable valye

ent persod 22,3505 76 lakhs(Previous vear ¥ 2,22.01 68 fakhs)

P

As a1 315t Narch, 2025

As at 3151 Maech, 2024

(Unsecured, considdered good)
-From related paities {Refer note ng. 38)

16118 31597
- Trade Receivables 2,161.27 1,937.62
2,322.42 2,253.89

Trnde Reeeivables Ageing sehedole as on 3151 Mnreh, 2025

Particulars

Outstanding Tor the following

periods from_date of {ransuction®

<O months;

6 munths- |

1-2 years; 2-3 yenrs More than 3: Total
S - year Years
(1) Undispued Trade rece: sensidered pood 213489 2038 - . 2,161 27
i) Undispaied Trade Recevables  wiich have . . - . -
|stgniticant increase iy eredit sk
(5) Undisputed Trale Receivabies - credit mnpairsd - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Tracde receivables - conswdered good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed T'rade Receivables ~ which have - - - - - -
sinilicunt merense in crodit sk
4vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaiced - e - - e
(v} Undisputed Trade Recervables from Reluted 161.i5 - - - 161,15
Parties
(ol 2,296.04 26,38 - - - 1,322.42
Trade Receivables Ageing schedulte as on 3ist Mael, 2024
Quistansling for the following periods from dste of &
Particalars <6 monlths G manibs - | 1-2 yemrs 2-3 yenrs More than 3 “Totat]
yeur] Years
| 4 Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 1.936.99) 0.63 - - 1,937.62
{11) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have . - - 5 - .
significan increase o eredil risk
(i) Undisputed Trade Reecivables - credit impaired - - - - - |
{1v) Disputed Trade veceivables - idered pood - - - - - -
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which haye - - - - - -
sugnuficant inerense in credit nsk
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
i) Undisputed Tiade Receivables ron Reled 3E4.97] - - - - 31597
Partioy,
{ lotal o [ . 2,252.96 .63 . - 2,253.59)

* Tisere e ne specilic due date of pay ment specstied i respet o rade receivables, as such the irade recelvables apemy schedule is prepared en the
Pty EL

~
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED

Nates 10 the financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025

(At amowats in T i Lakks, unfexs otherwisa stated)

15 Equity Share Capital

e As nl 315t March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Particulars ——e e | ASatJlst e
Numbor i in Lakhs Number in Lakhs
Authorised capital
Eguity Shares of 2 10- cach (par valuo} 1,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,00,060 1,000.00
Issued, subscribed and Fully paid up.
Equity Shares of 2 10- each {par valuc) 50,08, 700 $00.87 46,08,700 460,87
#) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at tie beginning and at the end of the year.
Particulars As at 31st March ms As at 3]st Mnrd:,. 2024
Number 2 in Lakhs Number ¥ in Lakhs
Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity shares
Shares and share capital owistanding at tae begiming of the period 46,08,700 46087 40,08,700 400.87
Shares and share capita! issuod during 1he period 4,00.00¢ 4000 6,00,000 60.00
{Shares and share capital at the end of the preriod 50,08,700.00 500.87] 46,08,700 460,87

b) Rights, Preferences and resteictions attnched to shares

Equity shares: The Company has one ¢lass of cquity shares having a par valuc of 2 10 per shese, Each sharcholder is cligible for one vote
subjeet to the approval of the shareholders in the enssing Annuat General Meeting,

per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dirceons is

oxcept in case of interim dividend. In the cvent of liquidation, the oguity shareholders are eligible 1o recoive the femaining
assets of the Company after distribuzion of all I il amounts, in proportion to their st i
Rights sttached ta prefereace shares
The compazy has not issued preferonco shares during the current fnd previous year,
<} Details of shaveholders holding more than 5% shaves in the Company
Particatars As on 315t March, 2028 As on 31st March, 2024 3 Change

No of shares % holding Ne of shares % holding _lin Shareholdi

Shiv Narayan Investment Pvi Lid - 0.00% 5,35,000 11.61% -11.61%
Devinder Garg 6,54,290 13.06% 13,54¢,290 29.39% ~16,32%
Socuracrop Sceurtics India Private Limited 3,00,000 5.99%) . 0.00% 5.99%
Vaneera Garg 1568510 31.32%) 13,67,5i0 25.67% 1.64%

d) There are no shares issucd without paynient being reccived in cash during the last five years.

) There are 1ta buy back of equity shars during the last five years
1} There are no bonus shares issued during the last five years.
£) There is no hokiing / ultinwate holding company of the company.

) Sherveholding of Promoter asd Promoter Group

(Jé&z&"
(Space intenttonally left blank) A
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Sr {Premater Name Sharchokling of Promoter pad Promoter Group as on|Sharcholding of Promoter and Promsoter Group as on 31st March,
No 315t March, 2025 2024
No.of  |% of total shares! % Change during the No. of Shares % of total shaves| % Change during
Shares period (ke period
1|Daviader Garg 6,54,200 13.06% {16.32%) 13,54,29¢ 29.39% 3.00%
2[Vaacera Garg. i5,68,510 31.32% 1.64%) 13,67,5i0 29.67% 3.04%
3| Toshak Garg 2,16951 4.33%| 0.38%) 2,16,951 4.71% 0,00%
4| Daksh Garg 2,10,55¢ 4.20% (0.36%) 2,10,550 4.57%| 0.00%
S/ Davindor Garg & Sons 23,600.00 047% (0.64%) 23,600 0.51% 0.00%
6{Subhash Chandra Gupta - 0.00%, 0.02%) 1,000 0.02% 0.00%
|7l Amarpreet Singh Thukral 1,000 0.02% 0.00% 1,000 0.02% 0.00%
Totad Shares held by promoter and Promoter Group at the end of
1he period 26,74,901 5341% 31,74,901 68.89%
o\

(-
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes (o the financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025
(Al neansis i 2 ot Lakhs. wndess otheryise stared)

GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes 10 the financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2028

(Al amaunts in 2 in Lakhs. unfess otherwise stated)

16 Other Equity

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025] As at 31st March, 2024
(i) Reserves and Surplus

a. Capital Reserve

Opemng Balanee 23.50 23.50
Add - Additions durmg the vear - -
Closing Balance 23.50 23.50
b. Securities Premium

Opening Balance 1,675.31 565,31
Add - Additions during the vear 740.00 1,110.00
Closing Balance 2,415.31 1,675.31
¢, Genernl Reserve

Opemng Balance 1,899.24 1,899 24
Add - Additons duning the vear - -
Closing Balance 1,899.24 1,899.24
. Retained Earnings

Opening Balanee (283.17) (839.01)
Profic tor the vear 763.59 55584
Closing Balance 480.42 (283.17)
(ii) Other Comprehensive Income

o, Remensurements of defined benefit obligation

Opening balance 549 297
Add: Other comprehensive mcome/(expense) 4.33 2.52
Closing balance 9.82 5.49
b. (Losshgain on fair valuation of equity investments through other comprehensive income

Opening balance 17.37 1690
Add Other comprehensive mcome/(expense) 0.82 047
Closing balance 18.19 17.37
(iii) Monies received against Share Warrants

Opening Balance 1,072.49 2,242.49
Add: Received during the year . *
Less: Converted into equity shares 195.00 1,170.00
Closing Balance 877.49 1,072.49
Tatal 5,723.97 441023
Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities premium reserve

Sceuntics premuin resenve is used to record the premsum on issuc of shares The reserve is utihised in ; with the p of the Ci Act

Capital reserve

The reserve comprises of profits/gams of capital nawure earned by the Company and credited directly to such reserve. such reserve is utilised in accordance with provisions of the Act.

General reserve

General reserve forms part of the retained eamings and is p d 10 be distrit to sharel aspart of dividend

Other comprehensive income:

-Remensurements of defined benefit obligation: Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation comprises actuarial gains and losscs and such gains and losses will never be classified to statement of

profit and loss

(. gain on fair valuation of equity i through other comprehensive income The cumulative gans and losses ansing on the I of equity at fair value
thiough other comprehensive meome. net of taxes and such gains and losses will never be classified (o statement of profit and loss

Monies received against share warranty

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

18,00,000 (Previous Year 22000000) equity warrants, allotted on preferential basis, carrying an option 877.49 1,072.49

10 the holder of such warrants to subscribe to one cquity share of T10/- each at a premium of T8/ per

share for every warrant held, within 18 menths from the date of allotment, i.c. from 15th December,

2023 (25% of price fixed has been received from warrant holders from their own bank account)

Durng the previous year the Company has issued 25,00,000 warrants at a price on 2 195/ per warrant on preferential basis 1o persans/ entity belonging (o p group and P group of the

Compam for consideration pavable (hrough clectronic means/ banking channels with an aption to subscribe to an equity share of face value of 2 10/- at a price of 2 195/- per equity share including premium
oF & 183 -per share for cach warrant with m the period of vighteen months from the date of allotment of warrant i ¢ from | 5th December, 2021

Out of 28,00.000 warrants. the Company has converted 4,00,000 warrants (6,00,000 warrants during the previous year) into equity share of face value of 210 at a price of 2 195/ per equity share including

prenaum of B3/~ per share for cach warrant

N




GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2028
(Al amonnis in & i Lakhs. untess otherwise aied)

17 Borrowings (Non-Current)

Particulars As nt 31st March, 2025] As at 315t March, 2024
L) Term Loan- Secured

From financial institution 69.69 80.14
2.) Other Loans- Unsecured

From others 60,00 60.00
e T N 129.69 140.14

is of Repayment

(Secured) : Vehicle Loan*

ble in monthly mstalments, Toral number ol

pending

are 21 as on 31st March,

69.69

Repayment details of loan outstanding as at 315t March, 2025

Other loans (unsecured) :

1) Repayable on demand

60.00

Terms of Repayment

*Vehicle Loans are secured by way of hypothecation of vehicles having carrying value of € 92.12 lakhs

Term Loan (Secured) : Vehiele Lonn**

1) Loan repayable in monthly instalments, Total number of instalments pending are 33 as on 31st March,
Other lonns (unsecured) :

R ent details of loan outstanding as at 31st March, 2024
80.14

1) Repayable on demand

60.00

**Vehicle Loans are secured by way of hypothecation of vehicles having carrying value of 2 105 53 lakhs

18 Provisions (Non-Current)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025] As at 31st March, 2024)
Provision for Employee Benefits 17.40 18.88
17.40 18.88
19 Borrowings (Curvent)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025| As at 31st March, 2024
Secured
Current matuinties of long-term borrow ngs (Vehicle Loan) 1044 v41
L = 10.44 9.41
20 Trade Payables (Curvent)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025| As at 31st March, 2024)
Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises 9.84 213
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 628.07 608.53
Unbilled Trade Payables-(Provision for Expenses) 70,64 260.02
N 708.55 870.68
Trade Paynbles Ageing schedule as on 31st March, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for followir riods from due date of transaction* |
Not Due, Less than | year} 1-2 years| 2-3 years| More than 3 Total,
- 9.84 - : 9.84
70.64 626.61 146 - 698.71
70.64 636.45 1.46 - 708.55
Trade Payables Ageing schedule as on 315t March, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction* ]
Not Due| Less (han 1 year| 1-2 years| 2-3 years|  More than 3 Total
(1) MSME - 213 - - 213
(11) Others 260.02 606.63 1.90 - 868.55
() Disputed dues -~ MSME - - - - =
1) Disputed dues — others . - . - =
Total 260.02 608.76 1.90 §70.68
* There are no specific due date of payment specified in respect of trade payables, us such the trade pavables ageing schedule is prepared on the basts ol date of transaction
21 Other Financial Liabilities (Curvent)
Particulary As at 31st March, 2025( As at 315t March, 2024
Interest acerued but not due on borrow mgs 0.49 0.55
Cheque issued but not presented 13.91 19.78]
Other Pavables 0.02 1.58
- — 14.42 2191
22 Other curvent linbilities
Particulars As At 31st Mareh, 2025| As at 315t March, 2024
Advance from customers 0.01 17.38
Statuton remittances* 76.11 125,08,
Other Payable 603.47 15.66,
679,59 158.09

* Statutory remittance includes contribution to provident fund, ESI, Punjab labour

23 Provisions (Current)

welfare fund and tax deducted at source, etc

[Parlimlnri

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 315t March, 2024

[Provision Tor Fmployee Benefits

6.76

5 78]

- SR

6.76

5,78
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24 Revenue from aperalions

GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Naies (o the fnanciai sutements for the yerr ended 31st Mareh, 2025
(A comonneants i i dgiehis, wndess itfierwise staiedy

As it 350 Mascly, 2028

As az 31st Marcls, 2024

Sate of products INet of GSTY

21,834,861 21,959 47
Sale of Stock i Trude 4,326.88 3843.11
26,161,49 25,802,58

Disaggregated vevenue information

regated revenues flom contracts with customars by sale of products for the yewr ended 315t March, 2028 and 115t March,
iy bebteves that this disaggrepation best depicts how the nasure, amount, timing und uncertamty of our sevenues and cash
flews are affecied by mdusiry, market and other economie factors

The table Delow presents dis
2023 respoetively. The Con

Paiticnlars

For the year ended

For the year ended

315t Mareh, 2025 3st March, 2024

Details of product Sold

Non Atloy Steel wound 13,758,72 13.401.01
Lnd Citting 062.73 27065
Wire rod 3,094.82 4,265.92
Butlers 4,040.97 2,493.47
Alloy Steel round 226,59 20.93
MS. Serap 231.25 1,420.61
Others 419.53 86.8
b oo 21,834.61 21,959.47

25 Quher lugonse

Particulins

Fusr (e yenr ended

For the yeur ended

J1s¢ March, 2025 3151 Mareh, 2024

Intesust incone 70,76 3392
Other non-vperating incame:
Remal inconwe 1.80 1.80
Commuission & Brokerage 93.17 83.79
Sundry Balanees Writen Back - 9.90
Protit on Sake of Fixed Assets 4.28 a
Maseelbneous fneome 0.6f 334

170.02 i 13278

20 Cast of macerinls consumed

Pavticulms For the year ended For the yenr ended
3151 Mareh, 2025 31st March, 2024
Opening stock 365.25 625.72
Add - Purchages (Net) 17,776.27 17,701 45
Less: Closing Stock 43559 365.25
17,705.93 17,963.92
Detadl of macerial consumed|
MS Scrap 17,301.13 17,721.53
Otiers 404,81 242.39
T 17,705,93 17.963.92
27 Chamge in inventovies of finished goods, stock in trade and worl -in-progresy
Pt For the yezr ended Foy the year omled
Particalars
313t March, 2025 3tst March, 2024
Openng stock
Finished Goagls # Stock i Trade 27276 795.34
Less Closing Stock
Funshed Googs * Stock u1 Teacle 107218 272,76
Net (ducrensejdecrense in inventory {799.42) 522.58

(space lefi mientionaliv blonk)
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(A amoines 1 ¥ in Lakhis, wless othrwise siatod)

28 Empioyee benefits expense

Particulais

Fer the yenr ended
3151 March, 2015

Far the year euded

Salwry, Wages and other Alfowancos

3ist Mareh, 2024

w

208.34 163 [}
Contrbution 10 Prasedent iad other fuads 8.20 253
i o 216,54 165.64
29 Finanee cosiy
. For the yenr encted For the year ended
Pmicolar:
S 305t Marel, 2025 315t March, 2024
nterest Expense
-working capital . 5.58
~other borrowings 1.1 i2.07
in 11,10 17.68
0 Deprecation and amortisation expease
Pavticelnes For the yenr ended For dhie year ended
JEst March, 2025 313t Marcl, 2024
Depreciation of propesty, plat and eqpment (refer nete 3) 164.36 157.04
164.36 152,04

31 Uther expenses

Particulurs

For the year ended
31st Manch, 2025

For the year ended

Meunulaciuring Expenses
Consimpton of §

31s1 Mareh, 2024

5 404,60 29728
Machimery Repairs wnd Mantenance 15.36 240
Pawer and Yuel 2,335,857 2,226.49
Testng Chorges 6.28 0.04

2,755.78 2,531.21
Adeministrative & Other Expensey
Ravtes and Tixes 6,77 425
Corporate Seeral Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note No 47) 14.47 5.08
insarance chasges 6,28 585
Repnirs and Mainlennnee;

Vehicle 17.94 13.02
Bukding 261 .97
Othery 1.28 069
Lose on Sale of Property, Mant and Eapment - on
Allowanees For expectod eredi joss and denbitul recanvibles 10.42 41
Auditer's Remuneration {Refer note 110,45) 4.50 4.25

Seiling wt Distribution Expenses 410 3.36

Legal & Professonal Expenses 9.15 .27

Lasting Fee 3,28 6.25

Secunty Charges .31 9.74
Tnvelling & Conveyance 6,25 146

Miscellancous Expenses 2869 igsa

2,876.77 2,637.91

2 Enmiings per shie (E9S) {Ind AS 33)

The Company’s Eanngs Per Shasre CEPS) is determmed bused on the
is computed using the werghied average number of shares outstanding
nunber of common and dilutive common equivale
didutive

net profil anrbutable 1o the shareholders® of the € ampany . Basic garnigs per share
during the year. Diluied eamings per share is compuled using the weighted average
nt shares outstanding during the year icluding share oplions, exeept where the result would be anli-

Paritcuinrs For the year ended For the yerr ende
. 3181 Mareh, 2028 3181 Mareh, 2024
Earnings Per Share hins heen computed as ander;

Prolia for the yew wnshuabie 1 the Equity holders of the A 763 591 55584
Comprany

Weshied avernge mumber of eqguaty sitares (number) 13 4742518 4015287
Woenghted avecsge numibe ol eguty shires m Conpuling L% 5412884 479237
dilned eaming per share {number)

Basic carniigs per share (2) A3 15.88] 1384
Diluted canmngs per share (¥) AIC 14,26 11.60
Face value per equity share (2) 10 10

Froposed dwadend, i any on equity sharos is subject (o the approval of the

shureholders of the Compiny #t the Anual General Mueting




GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Al amounts in % in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

33 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (7o the extent not provided for )

2 As at
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
() Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt* 259.78 259.78
(b) Bank Guarantees in favour of suppliers and others. 22.39 22.39
282.17 282.17

*The company has received the demand notice from Punjab State Power Corporation Limited charging the interest to the tune of 2 259.78 Lakhs out of which 2
232.21 Lakhs has been paid under protest during the previ

ous year as per court order, the said interest is levied on surcharge of 2 723.06 Lakhs which was fixed and
paid in pursuance of the judgement passed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court. The company has filed Civil Writ Petition in the High Court of Punjab and Haryana,
Chandigarh against such demand and has received stay order from the court, Company based on the data available and internal assessment, believes that the demand

will be quashed and hence, disclosed the demand as contingent liability.

34 Employee benefits
A. Defined benefit plan: Gratuity (unfunded)
The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuit
are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is th

IS days salary multiplied for the number of years of service

(i) Changes in the present value of the obligation

y Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years
e employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for

Particul As at As at
MEHCHINES 31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 2047 18.07
Interest cost 145 1.32
Current service cost 4.60 3.99
Benefits paid (0.75) (0.39)
Remeasurement - actuarial (gain) / loss (4.33) (2.52)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 21.45 20.47
(ii) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Particulars As at As at
’ 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 2145 2047
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - -
Net asset/(liability) recognised in the Bal Sheet 21.45 20.47
(iii) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Particulars As at As at|
L 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Current service cost 4.60 3.99
Net Interest cost 1.45 1.32
Interest income on plan assets = =
(Income)/Expense recognised in the stat t of profit and loss 6.05 5.31
(iv) Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability / (asset)
o As at As at
Aticuiars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Actuarial (gan)/loss for the year on projected benefit obligation (PBO) (4.33) (2.52)
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year on plan assets - -
Total Actuarial (gain)/loss at the end of the year (4.33) (2.52)

2 )
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(All amounts in T in Lakhs . unless otherwise stated)

(viii) Actuarial risks exposures and Sensitivity cum Scenario Testing

Actuarial Valuations are based on assumptions which are dynamic in nature and vary over

SENSITIVITY CUM SCENARIO TESTING (GRATUITY)

time. As such entity is exposed to various risks as follows AVGLDifference over
SR [ROI AR (In Rs,)|base

(1.00) (1.00) (1.00)| 21,66,473.00 21,407.00
(1.00) 0.00 (1.00)| 21,04,233.00 (40,833.00)
(1.00) 1,00 (1.00)| 20,46,382.00 (98,684.00)

a) Salary increases - Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in (1.00) (1.00) 0.00 | 21,45,686.00 620.00
salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability (1.00) 0.00 0.00 | 20,86,200.00 (58,866.00)
(1.00) 1.00 0.00 [ 20,30,800.00 | (1,14,266.00)

(1.00) (1.00) 1.00 | 21,25,822,00 (19,244.00)

:)‘:nhl::nllit:l ‘ll{‘:l;h(‘;‘:'.itltl-;;::'l:l“(IR()R) - Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations ::88; (1)38 :gg ;8?:"38‘;38 (lf;gjg;gg;
} : 0.00 (1.00) (1.00)| 22,32,274.00 87,208.00

0.00 0.00 (1.00)[ 21,65,824.00 20,758.00

¢) Mortality - Actual deaths proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can 0.00 (130 (1.00)] 21,04,183.00 (40,883.00)
nn;.mc\ liabilities 0.00 (1.00) 0.00 | 22,08,424.00 63,358.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 | 21,45,066.00 0.00

0.00 1.00 0.00 | 20,86,158.00 (58,908.00)

0.00 (1.00) 1.00 [ 21,85,777.00 40,711.00

d) Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than that assumed and|  0.00 0.00 1.00 | 21,25,232.00 (19,834.00)
change of withdrawals rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's liability 0.00 1.00 1.00 | 20,68,818.00 (76,248.00)
1.00 (1.00) (1.00)| 23,01,979.00 1,56,913.00

1.00 0.00 (1.00)[ 22,30,957.00 85,891.00

SENSITIVITY CUM SCENARIO TESTING TABLE (GRATUITY) 1.00 (1.00) (1.00)| 21,65,193.00 2,127.00
1.00 (1.00) 0.00 | 22,74,729.00 1,29,663.00

The table reflects change in habilities that will result from change in assumption in respect 1.00 0.00 0.00 | 22,07,172.00 62,106.00
of salary rise, imputed rate of return and attrition rates. Deviation in expected mortality is of 1.00 1.00 0.00 | 21,44,458.00 (608.00)
less significance and thus not included in analysis 1.00 (1,00) 1.00 | 22,49,008.00 1,03,942.00
1.00 0.00 1.00 [ 21,84,585.00 39,519.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 | 21,24,656.00 (20,410.00)

B. Contribution to Provident Fund

I'he company has recognized an expense of 2 1.00 Lakhs ( Previous year 2 |.14 Lakhs) in respect of contribution to Provident Fund

35 Segment Reporting

I'he Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Iron and Steel Products such as M.S. Round, Ingot,Billet, Wire Rod etc. Accordingly, the Company has
only one identiable segment reportable under Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment”. The chicef operational decision maker monitors the operating results of the entity’s
business for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment

Revenue for the Current and Previous Year from Domestic & Export Sale is as below :

- ) As at As at
Parkitalare 315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Revenue from Domestic Sales 26,161.49 25,802.58
Total Revenue 26,161.49 25,802.58
The following are the details of the revenues generated from the top 1 customer of the Company
Particulars i Axax
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Revenue from Top | Customer (Amount) 3,054.73 3,163.50
Revenue from Top | Customer (Percentage) 11.67% 12.26%
Revenue from Other Customers (Amount) 23106.76 22,639.08
Revenue from Other Customers (Percentage) 88.33% 87.74%
Total Revenue 26,161.49 25,802.58

\ T
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(All amounts in 2 in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

36 Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME)

The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED
Act), based on the available information with the Company are as under

Y — As at As at
SUEALY 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 9.84 2.13

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting period

(ii1) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSME Act, along with the
amount of payment made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

(1v) The amount of interest paid along with the amount of payment made to the suppliers beyond the
appointed day

(v) The amount of interest due and payable for a period of delay in making payment (which have been

paid but beyond appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSME|
acl.

(vi) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year
(vii) The amount of further interest due and payable even in succeeding year, until such date when the

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of dis-allowance as a
deductible expenditure under Section 23

37 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS-116 Leases

Company as a Lessor

The rental income

on assels given on operating lease to the M/s Vaneera Industries Limited was 2 1.80 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2025 (Previous year 2
1.80 lakhs).

'

B ole-G 7
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Notes 1o the finucinl seacements for the year ended 3151 March, 2025
AU oy in 2 i Lekls | wndess aiherwise teted)

38 Related party disclosure as per Ind AS 24

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on

Refated party disclosures, nne of the related party, refated party relationshi

where control exits and with whom transactions have wken place during reported periods, are:

#) Related party and their relytionslsip:-

P, ir ions and

fo—ya

ing balances

L3

Natuee of relationship

exercise signifieant influence ar confrol

(i) Enterprises over whith Key Management Personnel {KMP) and relutive of such personnel is zbie to

Name of velated party/ KMP

Yaneera Industries Limited
Avtar Exponts Private Limited

(i} IKey mumngenent presonnel (KM )

Devinder Gurg (Managing Director)

Toshak Garg {Munaging Dircctor)(w.c.I 14.08.2024)
Yancera Garg {Whole-time Director)

Amandleep Kaur (Independen Director) (w.e.f 01 04,2024}
Jyeui Butra (independent Directar) (w ¢ I 27.04 2024}
Purti Katyai {hwiependent Director){w.c I 14 08.2024)
Gurmeet Singh Battu ( Chief Financia Ofticer)

Supreenz Tagra (Company Secretary) (w.e.f 15.07.2022)

(i) Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Daksh Garg
Nivedita Garg
Ridhims Goyal

(3

(

)

Details of arausactions entered into with velaged parties during the yeur as required by Ind AS 24 on “Relnted Party Disclosures” of €

“ompanies (Jndian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015,

(i) Enterprises over which Key Munagensent Personnel (KM P) and relativ

€ of such personnct is abie 1o exercise sigaificnnt influcice or control

- As at; Asat
Particulays 3151 March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Purchase of goods 700 19721
-rom Vaneers Iidlustries Limited

Purchase of Equity Shares 162,70 -

-Of' Vaneera Industries Limited”

Commission Paict 0.75 .

= T Avtiar Exports Private Limited

Sales of Gowls 305473 3,730.81

o Vangeni Indusiiies Limited

Rent seeeived 180 .80
o Vaneera Industiies Linited

(i) Key manapement personnel (IKMP) and Relntives of IKMP
Managesial Renwimerution [ 40.35 | 32,16
Opening Balnce of Unsecured loan 1.58 263.71
Unsecured Loan regeived - 1,653 .48
Unsecured Loan Repaid 1.58 1,391.36

Clasing Balsnce of Unsecured logn - 158

*T'he Baard of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on 75h September 2024, and the shareholders at

S1.22% equity stake in Yaneera Industrics Limited {formery known as Vaneea

et share, comprising i lace value of 110 and a premium of 252 per share. The valuation of the invesimen

compuny &5 at 31st Cetober 2024

The total consideration for the acquisition is 23,627.00 lakhs. An amouit of 2362.70 lakhs, representing 10% of the 1ot
amownt s payable in one or mere additions! calls, the terms of whicl-—nchuding the rumber, timing, and quantur of each call—shat
panty paid-up equity shares of investee company.

As a 315t March 2025, (e Company has been afotted 58,50,000
Considering the business mode! witly which the company is hoiding the i

the Anowiai General Meeting held on 30th Septemb

2024

» 3PP

d the of'a

Industries Private Limited)(investee company). The acquisition involves the purchase of $8,50,000 oquity shares nt 262

subsidiacy of the company, (e i is ¢ ut | cost in ac

, the

| cash flow char

(¢} Details of balances outstonding as a1 year cud

ef the i and the

with ind AS 109 ~ Finangial Wnstruments.

was cardied ol by a registered valuer based on the unaudited financial stalements of investee

consideration, was paid as application money in February 2025. The batance
! be determined by the Board of Directors of the investee Company.

ial for the investee company to become a

] As at As at
LTI ;l 315t March, zazsl 31st Marci, 2024
Amount Keecivable un thie Inst day of D year
Trade Recervable against sale of poods I
Vaneern industies Linted 15115 31597
Amount Payable on the last day of the year

{Ohe Payables® | $85.00 | -

| Managenal Remuneration {Payabie)*» | 0.45 | 1.81

(1) The wansections witl: refated parties are made in the ordlinary course of business and on 1ents equivale

the year-end (s unsecured and settiement cecurs in cash

i) In the Bowrd Meeting of' the Company hekd on October 01,2024 a total sumber of

allatied 10 cach allotee i.e, the directors of the company- Devinder Garg and V,
sitown as ather payables by the compmy

*H(i) Long-term employee benetits for Key Managenial Persotmel
Vhe missiageeriat personnel are covered by Company's wratuity

compensated sbsenees cost pertaining 1o managerial remuneration have not been meluded in alore:

policy and are eligible far compensated absences along with other employes

O |

PA Rl
Al
‘.Ac"

0l (o those that prevail in arni’s fongth transactions with other vendors, Outstanding balances at

400000 warrants were to be converied 10 Equity shares, due to an error additional 400000 shares were mislekenly
aneesn Garg. This error was subsequently rectified and accardingly the excess amount recieved from directors hag been

es af e Company. The propertianate amount of gratuity and
mentioned disclosures as these are no1 detenmined on individual basis,

QU Lor




GARG FURNACE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(All amounts 2 in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

39 Di es of Fi

mstr

(a) The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories at the end of each reporting period is pending at the end as follows:

As at 31st March, 2025

At fair value through At fair value through OCI
profit or loss
Designated upon Mandatory Equity instruments Mandatory
Particulars Amortized cost (a)| initial recognition (©) designated upon (€) Total carrylng valug Total Fair value
(b) initial recognition (atbtetdte)
(@)

Financial Assets:

Non-Current Investments 362.70 0.72 39.38 - 402.80 402.80
Other Financial Non-Current Assets 283.55 ] I d 283.55 283.55
I'rade Receivables 2,402.66 - - - 2,402.66 2,402.66
Cash and Cash Equivalents 997.46 - - - 997.46 997.46
Other Bank Balances 276.78 - - - 276.78, 276.78
Other Financial Current Assets 271.03 - - - 271.03 271.03
Total 4,594.18 0.72 39.38 - 4,634.28 4,634.28
Financial Liabilities:

Long Term Borrowings 129.69! - - - 129.69 129.69
Short Term Borrowings 10.44 - - - 10.44 10.44
‘Trade Payables 708.55 - - - 708.55 708.55
Other Financial Current Liabilities 14.42 - - - 14.42 14.42
Total 863.10 - - - 863.10] 863.10
(a) The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories at the end of each reporting period is pending at the end as follows:

As at 31st March, 2024

At fair value through At fair value through OCI
Designated upon Mandatory Equity instr t Mandatory
Particulars Amortized cost (a) — r(e;;lgnillon - i:le:l:ﬁnr':‘c?g:ﬁ?:n - foul c'(:?:,:m:; Total Fair value
(d)

Financial Assets:

Non-Current Investments - - 38.57 - 3857 38.57
Other Financial Non-Current Assets 283.55 - - - 283.55 283,55
Trade Receivables 2,347.39 - - - 2,347.39, 2,347.39
Cash and Cash Equivalents 597.48 - - - 597.48 597.48,
Other Bank Balances 264.13 - - - 264.13 264.13
Other Financial Current Assets 36.85 - - - 36.85 36.85
Total 3,529.40| - 38.57 - 3,567.96, 3,567.96
Financial Liabilities:
Long Term Borrowings 140,14 - - - 140.14 140.14
Short Term Borrowings 941 - - - 9.41 941
Trade Payables 870.68 - - - 870.68 870.68
Other Financial Current Liabilities 21.91 - - - 21.91 21.91
Total 1,042.13 - - - 1,042.13 1,042.13

(b) Basis of Fair value of Financial assets and liabilities

(i) Fair Value hierarchy

Level |- Quoted prices (unadjusted) i active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 ~ Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Al amounts 2 in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i) The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31st March, 2025

. i Valuation technique(s) and key input(s
aeiiang Fair Value Fair Value measurement using ique(s) Y input(s)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets § - .

) : - Book value as per the previously audited financial
Non- current investments at fair value 3938 3 39.38 . |statements
through OCI
Non- (:\lrn:nl~ mvestments at fair value! o 072 : - | Quoted price as per the market as on 31t March 2025
through Profit and Loss
Total 40.10 0.72 39.38 -
As at 31st March, 2024

" Fair Value Fair Value measurement using Valuati hnique(s) and key input(s)
Particulars
Level | Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets . X X
_ Book value as per the previously audited financial
Non- current investments at fair value, 18.57 " 18.57 . .
through OCI ) '
Total 38.57 - 38.57 -
Financial Risk Management
The financial assets of the pany include in trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The financial liabilities of the
company include loans and borrowings, trade payables, and other payables, and the main purpose of these financial liabilitics is to finance the day to day operations of the company.
The company is mainly exposed to the following risks that arise from financial instruments:
(i) Market risk
(i) Liquidity nsk
(1i) Credit risk
The Company s senior management oversees the management of these risks and that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance fr k for the Company.
This note explams the risks which the company is exposed to and policies and framework adopted by the company to manage these risks:
(i) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fl L of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise two types of risk: foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk.
(a) Foreign currency risk
T'he company during the year is not exposed to any foreign currency risk as there are no dealings in foreign exchange
(b) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company’s total long-term debt obligations (including current
maturities) as at 3Ist March, 2025 is ¥ 140.14 Lakhs (previous year ¥ 149.54 Lakhs) out of which are borrowings amounting to ¥ 80.14 Lakhs (previous year ¥ 89.54 Lakhs) is interest
bearing and with variable rate of interest. The balance borrowings amounting to 2 60.00 Lakhs (previous year ¥ 60.00 Lakhs) is interest free loan repayable on demand.
At the reporting date the interest rate prolile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instrument is at its fair value:
Carrying amount
Variable rate instruments Fii inl Year Fi ial Year
2024-25 2023-24

Long term borrowings 69.69 80.13
Short term borrowings (Current matunties of long term debt) 10.44 941

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The followmg table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. A change of 100 basis points in interest rates
for variable rate instruments at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss for the below years by the amounts shown below. With all other variables held constant, the
Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows

p Financial Year Financial Year
Variable rate instruments

2024-25 2023-24
Increase/ (decrease) in 100 basis point 0.80 0.90

) p
ey N\
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(All amounts 2 n Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(ii) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty to meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and
ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements,

The financial liabilities of the company include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow
that is generated from operations.

The company monitors its risk of shortage of funds to meet the financial liabilities using a liquidity planning tool. The company plans to maintain sufficient cash to meet the obligations as and
when falls due

The below is the detail of contractual maturities of the financial liabilities of the company at the end of each reporting period:

Particulars Financial Year __ Financial Year,

2024-25 2023-24
Borrowings including current maturities 140.13 149.54
Less than | year 10.44 941
1-2 year 69.69] 70.44
2-5 year 60.00 69.69
5-10 year - “
Later

Short term borrowings
Less than | year -
1-2 year .
2-5 year
5-10 year -
Later .
Trade Payables 708.55 870.68
Less than | year 708.55 870.68
1-2 year =
2-5 year .
5-10 year N
Later =
Other Financial liabilities 14.42 2191
Less than | year 14.42 2191
1-2 year
2-5 year
5-10 year i
Later

(iii) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its contractual terms or obligations by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is

primarily from trade receivables which are typically unsecured. Credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited as the company generally invests in deposits with banks and financial
nstitutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies.

The company assesses the creditworthiness of the customers internally to whom 8oods are sold on credit terms in the normal course of business, The credit limit of each customer is defined in
accordance with this assessment

The impairment analysis is performed on client to client basis for the debtors that are past due at the end of each reporting date. The company has not considered an allowance for doubtful
debts in case of Trade receivables that are past due but there has not been a significant change in the credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top one and other S

Pirtibaiats Financial Year Financial Year
2024-25 2023-24

Top 1 Customer (%) 11.67% 12.26%

Other Customer (%) 88.33% 87.74%

Credit Risk Exposure

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit loss experience and adjustments for forward looking
nformation

Particulars Financial Year Financlal Year

2024-25 2023-24
Less than one year 2322.42 2253.59
More than one year 111.18 123.72
The allowanee for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the year ended 315t March, 2025 was 2 30.94 Lakhs (previous year ¥ 29.92 Lakhs).

Write off policy

The financials assets are written ofF in case there is no reasonable expectation of recovering from the H‘umnciﬂl assel,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Al amonnis < i Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Capital Management

The capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the company’s capital
is to maintain opti capital structure to reduce cost of capital and to maximize the shareholder value,

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in i ditions and the
the banks to immediately call loans and borrowings. In order to maintain or adj
shareholders or issue new shares.

Jui of the financial ants which otherwise would permit
ust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s gearing ratio was as follows:

Particulars Duanclel Yoar: L o

2024-25 2023-24
Borrowings including current maturities and interest accrued but not due 140.13; 149.54
Less: Cash & cash equivalent and other bank balances 997.46 861.60
Net debt (A) (857.33) (712.06)
Total equity (B) 6,224.83 4,871.10)
Gearing ratio (A/B) N.A. N.A.
Further, there have been no breaches in the fi | co Is of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

There were no changes in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 3 1st March, 2025 and 3 1st March, 2024.

Significant Transaction

During the previous year, the Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on December 19, 2023, approved the issuance of 28,00,000 (Twenty-Eight Lakh) warrants on a
preferential basis, at an issue price of 195/- per warrant, to certain persons/entities belonging to the p group and non-p group of the Company. Each warrant carries the right
10 subscribe to one fully paid-up equity share of face value Z10/- at a price of Z195/- (including a premium of 2185/~ per share) within a period of eighteen months from the date of allotment.
The consideration for the preferential issue is payable in cash and was received through electronic means/banking cl Is, in compli with applicable laws and regulations, The
preferential allotment has been undertaken pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including Sections 23(1)(b)and 42) , read with applicable rules made th d
and the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Discl Requi: 1ts) Regulations, 2018, as led, and other applicable regulatory provisions.

Out of the total 28,00,000 warrants issued; during the previous year, the Company converted 6,00,000 warrants into equity shares of face value Z10/- each at a price of 2195/~ per share
(including 2185/~ as share premium). Further, during the current year, the Company converted an additional 4,00,000 warrants into equity shares on the same terms.

The Company proposed the preferential allotment as a cost and time-effective capital-raising method to meet its growing financial and operational needs. The proceeds from the issue are
intended to be used for:

(a) Meeting the working capital requirements
(b) Business expansion activities

(c) General corporate purposes

Ihis strategic capital raise through preferential offer aligns with the Company's long-term business objectives and growth trajectory.
Id WP g M’/\
: /E Ve~ /ij
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GARG FURNACE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(All amounts 2 in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

43 Reconciliation of Cash flow from Financing Activities

In pursuant to amendment in the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 via MCA notification G.S.R 258(E) dated 17th March, 2017 Para 44A to Para
44E has been inserted after Para 44 in Indian accounting Standard-7 * Statement of Cash Flows” for the period beginning on 1st April, 2017

activities of Cash Flow Statement

Particulars Current Non-current borrowingl
borrowing including current maturities
Opening balance of Financial liabilities as on Ist April, 2024 coming under the financing - 149,54
activities of Cash Flow Statement
a) Changes from financing cash flow - (9.41)
b) Changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other business - -
¢) The effect of changes in foreign exchanges rates- (Gain)/Loss .
d) Changes in fair value .
Closing balance of Financial liabilities as on 31st March, 2025 coming under the financing - 140.13
activities of Cash Flow Statement
Particulars Current Non-current borrowing
borrowing including current maturities
Opening balance of Financial liabilities as on 1st April, 2023 coming under the financing “ 475.89
activities of Cash Flow Statement
a) Changes from financing cash flow - (326.35)
b) Changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other business - -
¢) The effect of changes in foreign exchanges rates- (Gain)/Loss - -
d) Changes in fair value - -
Closing balance of Financial liabilities as on 31st March, 2024 coming under the financing - 149.54

has not been made. Accordingly no impairment loss has been provided in the books of account

45 Auditor's Remunerations

44 Inaccordance with the Ind AS-36 on Impairment of Assets, the Company has assessed as on the balance sheet date, whether there are any indications with regard to the
impairment ol any of the assets. Based on such assessment it has been ascertained that no potential loss is present and therefore, formal estimate of recoverable amount

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2025
Statutory Audit Fee 4.00 4.00
Tax audit fee 0.50 0.25
4.50 4,25

decided not to recogmise the deferred tax asset (net).

(Space mtentionally left blunk)
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46 In compliance of Ind AS 12 on ‘Income Taxes', due to lack of certainity of future taxable profits, as a matter of prudence and on conservative basis, the company has

[

o



GARG FURNACE LINITED

Nutes 1o the finnncial statements for the year ended 31se March, 2028
(Al cmonnis & i dakhs undess otherwise staed)

47 Expenditure un Corporite Socinl Responsibitity (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Cop

ies Act, 2013 rend with Companies (Cerporate Social Respansibitity Policy} Rules, 2014 (the “CSR Rules™), a company, meeting the

appheabibity catens requares to spend at feast 2% of its averspe Bet profit fer the immediately preceding thice financial years on corporale social responsibility (CSR)

activaties as provided in Schedule V1L of the Companies Aet, 2613 The CSR

are by the CSR C formed by the Bourd of Directors in accerdance

witks the provisions of the Section 135 of the Companies Aet 2013 rend with CSR Rules.

Particulsirs

For the yeur ended
3ist March, 2025 315t March, 2024
Amownt sequired 1o be spem on CSR by the Company during the year 11 88 5.08
Amount of expendiure menred 14.47 5.08
Excess wmount speat during (he yoar 2.59) -
Shortfall if any, at tie end of the year - 0
Tatal of previous yeas shortfall Not Applicablef Not Applicable

Nawie of CSR acuvities

Promoting education, healthicare, cradication of hunger and

For Ashwan & Associntes
Chariered Accountants

Fum Registration Number: 000497N
by the band of

Arvind Jaen
Fartner

M No 09754y

lace
Date

Ludhiana
- J0-05-2025

I-‘p.n)nml on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Devinder Garg
Mapaging Director
DIN 01665456
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Copigrany Secraary
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o

oy disaster reliel and rural
development prajects,
Detinl of related party trnsaciion u ielations 1o CSR expenchitura s per relevant bidian Acconmting - -
Standard
A8 Additional Regulatory Information
Sr. NojAdditionnl Reguolatory Information Remarls
i Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in The has no such i bie proj whose nitle desds are not held i the name of the company and 10 such|
the name of the Compuny immovable proporty is jeintly held will: others.
2 Vo viuation of wvesiuenl pioperty Not Applicable
3 Revafuation of Proparty, Plam and Equipment] The Company has not revatued its Property, Plant & Equipment during the yewr. The Company does nol have any Right-cf}
and Right-ol-Use Assets use-assets dunng the year.
4 Revaluation of ble assels Nol Applicable
§ Lowns or advances la specifled persons There are no louns and advances granted (o p directors and KMP'g during the year
- Intangible assets wnder development Noi Applicable
7 Detuls of Benam Propeny hold There s no Benam Property held by the company
3 iBorowins secured samst cuirent assels The Company hias no borsowings ron basks on the basis ol secunty of current rssels.
K Witlul Defaiien The Company is nat declasedd as wilful defautter by any bank or inancial Istitution or other iender during the vear.
10 Relationship with Siruck off' As per manggement, there is no refationship of die company wiih struck ofT comp
1 Registration of charges or satisfaction with| There are 1o charges or satsfaction ol charges yel 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory time period.
Registrar of Companies (ROC)
1?2 Compliance with sanber of Inyers of companies {Not Applicable
i3 Complivice  witk  approved  Scheme(s)  of|Not Applicable
Arrangements
4 Utiisation of  Borrowed  fads  and  share| Not Applicable
preniun
185 Undiisclosed Inconw There is ne undi d ncome dusing the yea:.
16 Crypio cureacy of virlual currency [The company has not traded or invested in CoypIo cuitency of virtual currenicy during the year.
AY Anulytical Ratios
S.Na Particulars Numerntor Denonminator 2024-28 2023-24 Variance (in Yoage)| Reasons
1| Current Rutio Current Asseis Current Liatnlitios 391 398 -1.83%|N A
2| Drebt-Equity Ravo Total deb| Total Equily 0.02 0.03 ‘24.96%_]'&/\.
3| Debt Services covernge Ratio Eamings avaiable for deby Gross 70.36% 42.10% 67.13%|Due to increase i camings
service| Interest+Repayment ol
ioan, unsecured loan)
A Return on equity rate (ROE) Netprolitafter Tax|  Avernge Sharcholders| 13.76% 16.02% ~14.11%(N.A.
Equity]
o nventony Twrneves Rave (i days) Revenue from Cperations Averise nvenlery 21 99 22 34 <1.56%{N.A
oFTrade secervable turmever sio (in days) Credu Sales Average Trade| o2 122} -9.91%|N.A.
S Trade payabie wrenover fato {m days) Credit Purchases] Average Trade Payubles) 22.51 29.02 <22.42%{N.A.
8] Net cupiral wunover ratio Tumever Working capital 6.34 8.13 -22.04%{N.A
9| Net profit ratio Net profit after Tax Tumover, 2.92% 2.14% 36.39%{Due to increase 1 Net profit afier Tax
10| Return on capual eployed (ROCE) LBIT] Tangible Net Warth: 1245% 11.42% 8.98%|N.A.
Total debt+Deferred
Tax Liabibues
||| Retura on lvestment Return on invesiments| Investmentsj - - - [There are no retum on investients during the year
2025 wnd 2024
S0 Frgures 01 bracket mdicite dedachions
A1 Previcus yeur Duures have been regrouped. U wed wh necessmy to conforn o its classification of the current year
AX per our report of even duie aiaciiod

S

Yaneera Garg
Director
DIN: 01283990
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Form No. MGT - 11PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 19(3) of the
Companies(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

GARG FURNACE LIMITED CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385
Regd.office: Kanganwal Road, V.P.O.Jugiana, G.T.Road, Ludhiana-141120

Name of the member (S) i i e e e e

FolioNo/ClientId: ...vvuiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeennnnnns DPID: ittt

I/We, beingthe member(s) of GARG FURNACE LIMITED holding shares of the
above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name:

Address: .................
E-mailld: .o Signature ,orfailing him

2. Name: ...........
Address:....
E-mailld: oo Signature ,or failing him

3. NaME: i,

E-mailld: e Signature ,orfailing him

As my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the 52™
Annual GeneralMeeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, 15" day of September,

2025 at 11:00 A.M. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions to
be proposed at such 49th Annual General Meeting

Signed this v day of 2025 Rg/f;)ze
Signature of Shareholder ......c.cccvvvivvieiinire e Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s) ....ccociiiiiiiini

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Company's Registered Office, not less than 48 hour before the commencement of the
Meeting.

152



GARG FURNACE | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 www.gargfurnacelimited.com

GARG FURNACE LIMITED CIN: L99999PB1973PLC003385
Regd.office: Kanganwal Road, V.P.O.Jugiana,G.T.Road, Ludhiana-141120
Phone-+91-2512285, 8437004842
Email_ gargfurnace@yahoo.comWeb:www.gargfurnacelimited.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
52" ANUUAL GENERAL MEETING ON 15" DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2025

DP ID- Client ID/ Folio No :
Name & Address of Sole Member:
No. of Shares held:

I certify that I am a member/ proxy of the Company.

I hereby record my presence at the 52" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held
on Monday, 15" Day of September, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. at Registered Office of the Company.

Member/ Proxy Signature

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS
EVSN User ID Password/Pin

(Electronic Voting Sequence Number) (Pan/Seq.No.)

Note: Please read the complete instructions given under the Notes (The instructions for
shareholders voting electronically) to the Notice of 52"° Annual General Meeting. The voting
time starts from Friday, 12th September, 2025 (9.00AM IST) and ends on Sunday,
14" September, 2025 (5.00PM IST). The voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for
voting thereafter.
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If undelivered please return to:

GARG FURNACE LIMITED

Regd. Office : Kanganwal Road, V.P.O. Jugiana,
G.T. Road, Ludhiana-141-120
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